THE VIRGINIA REGISTER INFORMATION PAGE

THE VIRGINIA REGISTER is an official state publication issued every other week throughout the year. Indexes are published quarterly, and the last index of the year is cumulative. THE VIRGINIA REGISTER has several functions. The new and amended sections of regulations, both as proposed and as finally adopted, are required by law to be published in THE VIRGINIA REGISTER OF REGULATIONS. In addition, THE VIRGINIA REGISTER is a source of other information about state government, including all emergency regulations and executive orders issued by the Governor, the Virginia Tax Bulletin issued periodically by the Department of Taxation, and notices of public hearings and open meetings of state agencies.

ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL OF REGULATIONS

An agency wishing to adopt, amend, or repeal regulations must first publish in the *Virginia Register* a notice of intended regulatory action; a basis, purpose, substance and issues statement; an economic impact analysis prepared by the Department of Planning and Budget; the agency's response to the economic impact analysis; a summary; a notice giving the public an opportunity to comment on the proposal; and the text of the proposed regulation.

Following publication of the proposal in the *Virginia Register*, the promulgating agency receives public comments for a minimum of 60 days. The Governor reviews the proposed regulation to determine if it is necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare, and if it is clearly written and easily understandable. If the Governor chooses to comment on the proposed regulation, his comments must be transmitted to the agency and the Registrar no later than 15 days following the completion of the 60-day public comment period. The Governor's comments, if any, will be published in the *Virginia Register*. Not less than 15 days following the completion of the agency may adopt the proposed regulation.

The appropriate standing committee of each branch of the General Assembly may meet during the promulgation or final adoption process and file an objection with the Registrar and the promulgating agency. The objection will be published in the *Virginia Register*. Within 21 days after receipt by the agency of a legislative objection, the agency shall file a response with the Registrar, the objecting legislative committee, and the Governor.

When final action is taken, the agency again publishes the text of the regulation as adopted, highlighting all changes made to the proposed regulation and explaining any substantial changes made since publication of the proposal. A 30-day final adoption period begins upon final publication in the *Virginia Register*.

The Governor may review the final regulation during this time and, if he objects, forward his objection to the Registrar and the agency. In addition to or in lieu of filing a formal objection, the Governor may suspend the effective date of a portion or all of a regulation until the end of the next regular General Assembly session by issuing a directive signed by a majority of the members of the appropriate standing committees and the Governor. The Governor's objection or suspension of the regulation, or both, will be published in the *Virginia Register*. If the Governor finds that changes made to the proposed regulation have substantial impact, he may require the agency to provide an additional 30-day public comment period on the changes. Notice of the additional public comment period required by the Governor will be published in the *Virginia Register*.

The agency shall suspend the regulatory process for 30 days when it receives requests from 25 or more individuals to solicit additional public comment, unless the agency determines that the changes have minor or inconsequential impact.

A regulation becomes effective at the conclusion of the 30-day final adoption period, or at any other later date specified by the promulgating agency, unless (i) a legislative objection has been filed, in which event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall be after the expiration of the 21-day extension

period; (ii) the Governor exercises his authority to require the agency to provide for additional public comment, in which event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall be after the expiration of the period for which the Governor has provided for additional public comment; (iii) the Governor and the General Assembly exercise their authority to suspend the effective date of a regulation until the end of the next regular legislative session; or (iv) the agency suspends the regulatory process, in which event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall be after the expiration of the 30-day public comment period.

Proposed regulatory action may be withdrawn by the promulgating agency at any time before the regulation becomes final.

EMERGENCY REGULATIONS

If an agency demonstrates that (i) there is an immediate threat to the public's health or safety; or (ii) Virginia statutory law, the appropriation act, federal law, or federal regulation requires a regulation to take effect no later than (a) 280 days from the enactment in the case of Virginia or federal law or the appropriation act, or (b) 280 days from the effective date of a federal regulation, it then requests the Governor's approval to adopt an emergency regulation. The emergency regulations, unless a later date is specified. Emergency regulations are limited to addressing specifically defined situations and may not exceed 12 months in duration. Emergency regulations are published as soon as possible in the *Register*.

During the time the emergency status is in effect, the agency may proceed with the adoption of permanent regulations through the usual procedures. To begin promulgating the replacement regulation, the agency must (i) file the Notice of Intended Regulatory Action with the Registrar within 60 days of the effective date of the emergency regulation; and (ii) file the proposed regulation with the Registrar within 180 days of the effective date of the emergency regulation. If the agency chooses not to adopt the regulations, the emergency status ends when the prescribed time limit expires.

STATEMENT

The foregoing constitutes a generalized statement of the procedures to be followed. For specific statutory language, it is suggested that Article 2 (§ 9-6.14:7.1 et seq.) of Chapter 1.1:1 of the Code of Virginia be examined carefully.

CITATION TO THE VIRGINIA REGISTER

The *Virginia Register* is cited by volume, issue, page number, and date. **12:8 VA.R. 1096-1106 January 8, 1996,** refers to Volume 12, Issue 8, pages 1096 through 1106 of the *Virginia Register* issued on January 8, 1996.

"THE VIRGINIA REGISTER OF REGULATIONS" (USPS-001831) is published bi-weekly, with quarterly cumulative indices published in January, April, July and October, for \$100 per year by the Virginia Code Commission, General Assembly Building, Capitol Square, Richmond, Virginia 23219. Telephone (804) 786-3591. Periodical Postage Rates Paid at Richmond, Virginia. POSTMASTER: Send address changes to THE VIRGINIA REGISTER OF REGULATIONS, 910 CAPITOL STREET, 2ND FLOOR, RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219.

The Virginia Register of Regulations is published pursuant to Article 7 (§ 9-6.14:22 et seq.) of Chapter 1.1:1 of Title 9 of the Code of Virginia. Individual copies, if available, may be purchased for \$4.00 each from the Registrar of Regulations.

<u>Members of the Virginia Code Commission</u>: Joseph V. Gartlan, Jr., Chairman; W. Tayloe Murphy, Jr., Vice Chairman; Robert L. Calhoun; Bernard S. Cohen; Jay W. DeBoer; Frank S. Ferguson; J. Randy Forbes; James E. Kulp; E.M. Miller, Jr.; James B. Wilkinson.

Staff of the Virginia Register: Jane D. Chaffin, Registrar of Regulations.

PUBLICATION SCHEDULE AND DEADLINES

This schedule is available on the Register's Internet home page (http://legis.state.va.us/codecomm/register/regindex.htm).

Volume:Issue	Material Submitted By Noon*	Will Be Published On
15:15	March 24, 1999	April 12, 1999
15:16	April 7, 1999	April 26, 1999
15:17	April 21, 1999	May 10, 1999
15:18	May 5, 1999	May 24, 1999
15:19	May 19, 1999	June 7, 1999
15:20	June 2, 1999	June 21, 1999
INDEX 3 - Volume 15		July 1999
15:21	June 16, 1999	July 5, 1999
15:22	June 30, 1999	July 19, 1999
15:23	July 14, 1999	August 2, 1999
15:24	July 28, 1999	August 16, 1999
15:25	August 11, 1999	August 30, 1999
15:26	August 25, 1999	September 13, 1999
FINAL INDEX - Volume 15		October 1999
16:1	September 8, 1999	September 27, 1999
16:2	September 22, 1999	October 11, 1999
16:3	October 6, 1999	October 25, 1999
16:4	October 20, 1999	November 8, 1999
16:5	November 3, 1999	November 22, 1999
16:6	November 16, 1999 (Tuesday)	December 6, 1999
16:7	December 1, 1999	December 20, 1999
INDEX 1 - Volume 16		January 2000
16:8	December 14, 1999 (Tuesday)	January 3, 2000
16:9	December 28, 1999 (Tuesday)	January 17, 2000
16:10	January 12, 2000	January 31, 2000
16:11	January 26, 2000	February 14, 2000
16:12	February 9, 2000	February 28, 2000
16:13	February 23, 2000	March 13, 2000
16:14	March 8, 2000	March 27, 2000
INDEX 2 - Volume 16		April 2000

April 1999 through March 2000

*Filing deadlines are Wednesdays unless otherwise specified.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CUMULATIVE TABLE OF VIRGINIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTIONS ADOPTED, AMENDED, OR REPEALED

Cumulative Table2101

NOTICES OF INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION

TITLE 9. ENVIRONMENT

Virginia Waste Management Board	2119
State Water Control Board	2120

TITLE 12. HEALTH

TITLE 18. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING

Board of Medicine	.2121
Board of Nursing	.2123
Board of Pharmacy	.2123
Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage an Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment	nd
Professionals	.2123
Board of Psychology	.2124
Board of Veterinary Medicine	.2125

TITLE 23. TAXATION

Department of	Taxation	2125
---------------	----------	------

TITLE 24. TRANSPORTATION AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Department of Motor Ve	hicles2125
------------------------	------------

FINAL REGULATIONS

TITLE 4. CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES

MARINE RESOURCES COMMISSION

TITLE 12. HEALTH

STATE MENTAL HEALTH, MENTAL RETARDATION AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES BOARD

Withdrawal

Certification of the Qualification of Providers of Behavior Consultation Services. (12 VAC 35-210-10 et seq.) 2135

TITLE 14. INSURANCE

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

GENERAL NOTICES/ERRATA

STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

Proposed Consent Special Order - Stillwater, Inc...... 2137

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

Notice to State Agencies	2137
Forms for Filing Material for Publication in <i>The Virginia</i> Register of Regulations	2127
	2101

CALENDAR OF EVENTS

EXECUTIVE

Open Meetings and Public Hearings	2138
LEGISLATIVE	
Open Meetings and Public Hearings	2157
CHRONOLOGICAL LIST	
	0457

Open Meetings	. 2157
Public Hearings	. 2159

CUMULATIVE TABLE OF VIRGINIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTIONS ADOPTED, AMENDED, OR REPEALED

The table printed below lists regulation sections, by Virginia Administrative Code (VAC) title, that have been amended, added or repealed in the *Virginia Register* since the regulations were originally published or last supplemented in VAC (the Fall 1998 VAC Supplement includes final regulations published through *Virginia Register* Volume 14, Issue 25, dated August 31, 1998). Emergency regulations, if any, are listed, followed by the designation "emer," and errata pertaining to final regulations are listed. Proposed regulations are not listed here. The table lists the sections in numerical order and shows action taken, the volume, issue and page number where the section appeared, and the effective date of the section.

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
Title 1. Administration			
1 VAC 30-130-10	Amended	15:1 VA.R. 44 (4390)	9/15/98
1 VAC 30-140-10	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 978	12/1/98
Title 2. Agriculture			
2 VAC 20-50-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:11 VA.R. 1692	3/17/99
2 VAC 20-51-10 through 2 VAC 20-51-210	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1693-1700	3/17/99
Title 4. Conservation and Natural Resources			
4 VAC 15-320-20	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 574	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-320-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 575	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-320-100	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 575	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-320-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 576	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-320-160	Added	15:5 VA.R. 576	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 577	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 577	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-140	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 577	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-150	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 578	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-330-160	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 578	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-340-60	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 578	1/1/99
4 VAC 15-360-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 579	1/1/99
4 VAC 20-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 579	10/28/98
4 VAC 20-20-35	Added	15:5 VA.R. 579	10/28/98
4 VAC 20-20-35	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2044	3/1/99
4 VAC 20-260-30	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 320	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-260-40	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 320	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-560-40	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 978	12/1/98
4 VAC 20-560-50	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 979	12/1/98
4 VAC 20-620-30	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1157	1/1/99
4 VAC 20-620-40	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 580	10/28/98
4 VAC 20-620-40	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1157	1/1/99
4 VAC 20-620-42 emer	Added	15:5 VA.R. 718	10/30/98-11/17/98
4 VAC 20-620-50	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2044	3/1/99
4 VAC 20-620-70	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2045	3/1/99
4 VAC 20-720-40	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 321	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-50	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 321	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-60	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 321	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-70	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 322	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-70	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 979	12/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-80	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 322	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-80	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1790	2/1/99
4 VAC 20-720-90	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 322	10/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-105	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 979	12/1/98
4 VAC 20-720-106 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1845	2/1/99-2/12/99
4 VAC 20-900-10	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2045	3/1/99
4 VAC 20-900-25	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2045	3/1/99

Volume 15, Issue 15

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
		15:14 VA.R. 2045	
4 VAC 20-900-35	Added		3/1/99
4 VAC 20-960-45	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 982	1/1/99
4 VAC 20-1020-10 through 4 VAC 20-1020-40	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1790	2/2/99
4 VAC 25-30 (Forms)	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1020	
4 VAC 25-30 (Forms)	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1351	
4 VAC 25-35 (Forms)	Amended	15:1 VA.R. 46 (4392)	
4 VAC 25-35 (Forms)	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2075-2077	
4 VAC 25-40 (Forms)	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1020	
4 VAC 25-130-700.5	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 811	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-779.22	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 823	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-779.25	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 824	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-780.23	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 824	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-780.25	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 825	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-780.35	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 826	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-783.25	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 827	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-784.15	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 827	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-784.16	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 828	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-784.23	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 830	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-800.40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 830	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.46	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 832	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.49	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 834	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.74	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 836	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.81	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 837	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.89	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 837	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.104	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 838	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-816.105	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 838	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.46	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 838	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.49	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 840	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.74	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 842	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.81	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 843	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-817.89	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 844	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-840.11	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 844	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-843.14	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 845	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-845.17	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 846	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-845.18	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 846	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-845.19	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 847	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130-846.17	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 847	1/6/99
4 VAC 25-130 (Forms)	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1736	
4 VAC 25-150-10	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 135	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-50	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 138	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-60	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 138	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-70	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 139	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-80 through 4 VAC 25-150-130	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 139-143	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-90	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150-135	Added	15:2 VA.R. 143	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-160 through 4 VAC 25-150-360	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 143-156	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-380 through 4 VAC 25-150-430	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 156-159	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-435	Added	15:2 VA.R. 159	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-440 through 4 VAC 25-150-460	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 161-162	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-500 through 4 VAC 25-150-530	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 162-163	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-500	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150-540	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 165	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-560	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 167	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-560	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150-500 4 VAC 25-150-570	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 167	11/11/98
1 47.0 20 100 010	Repealed	10.2 17.11. 107	11/11/30

	ACTION		
SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
4 VAC 25-150-580 through 4 VAC 25-150-610	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 168-169	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-610	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150-640	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 171	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-650 through 4 VAC 25-150-700	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 171-172	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-690	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150-710	Repealed	15:2 VA.R. 172	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-711	Added	15:2 VA.R. 172	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150-720 through 4 VAC 25-150-740	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 173	11/11/98
4 VAC 25-150 (Forms)	Erratum	15:6 VA.R. 938	
4 VAC 25-150 (Forms)	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2077-2078	
Title 8. Education			
8 VAC 35-30-30	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1706	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-50	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1707	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-160	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1707	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-200	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1707	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-210	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1707	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-220	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1708	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-230	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1708	1/18/99
8 VAC 35-30-240	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1709	1/18/99
Title 9. Environment	, interface		1/10/00
9 VAC 5-20-21	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1799	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-20-204	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 174	1/1/99
9 VAC 5-20-205	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 175	1/1/99
9 VAC 5-20-205 9 VAC 5-30-20	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1791	4/1/99
		15:12 VA.R. 1791	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-880	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1794 15:12 VA.R. 1794	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-890	Amended		
9 VAC 5-40-900	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1795	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-940	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1795	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1040	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1796	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1660	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1796	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1670	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1796	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1690	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1797	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1750	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1798	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1770	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1798	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1780	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1798	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-1810	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1799	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5350 through 9 VAC 5-40-5480	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1793-1794	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5800	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1801	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5810	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1802	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5820	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1804	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5822	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1806	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5824	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1807	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5850	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1808	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5855	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1811	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5860	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1812	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5870	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1815	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5880	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1816	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5890	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1820	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5920	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1822	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-40-5930	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1822	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-50-400	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1822	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-50-400	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1918	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-50-410	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1823	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-50-410	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1918	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-50-410 9 VAC 5-50-420	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1828	4/1/99
	/	10.12 WARA 1020	11100

Volume 15, Issue 15

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
9 VAC 5-50-420	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1924	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-60	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1924	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-70	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1925	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-80	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1926	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-90	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1927	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-60-100	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1927	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-70-40	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1791	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-80-30	Repealed	15:11 VA.R. 1717	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-80-2000 through 9 VAC 5-80-2190	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1717-1728	4/1/99
9 VAC 5-80-2010	Erratum	15:13 VA.R. 1955	
9 VAC 5-200-10	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1931	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-200-20	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1931	4/14/99
9 VAC 5-200-20	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1931	4/14/99
9 VAC 20-60-10		15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
	Repealed		
9 VAC 20-60-12	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-14	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-17	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-18	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-60	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-70	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-100	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-110	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-120	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-124	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-130	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-140	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-150	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-160	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-170	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-180	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-190	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-200	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-210	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-220	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-230	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-240	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-250	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-260	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-261	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-262	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-263	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-264	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-265	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-266	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-268	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-208	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-273	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-279	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-279 9 VAC 20-60-280			
	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-290	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-300	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-305	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-310	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-315	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-320	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
9 VAC 20-60-325	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-330	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-340	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-350	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-360	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-370	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-380	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-390	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-400	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-410	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-420	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-430	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-440	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-450	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-460	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-470	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-480	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-490	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-500	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-510	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-520	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-530	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-540	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-550	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-560	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-570	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-580	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-590	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-600	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-610	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-620	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-630	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-640	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-650	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-660	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-670	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-680	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-710	<u> </u>	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-720	Repealed Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-730	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-740	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-750	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-760	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-770	Repealed		2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-780	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
		15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-790	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159 15:9 VA.R. 1159	
9 VAC 20-60-800	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-810	Repealed		2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-820	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-830	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-840	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-850	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-860	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-870	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-880	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99

Volume 15, Issue 15

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
9 VAC 20-60-890	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-930	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-940	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-950	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-970	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-980	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-990	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1000	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1010	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1030	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1040	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1050	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1060	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1080	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1090	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1100	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1110	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1120	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1130	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1140	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1150	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1160	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1170	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1180	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1200	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1250	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1260	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1270	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1280	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1310	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1330	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1340	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1350	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1360	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1370	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1380	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1390	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1400	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1410	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1420	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1430	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1440	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1450	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1460	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1470	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1480	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1495	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 20-60-1505	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1158	2/17/99
9 VAC 25-150-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1159	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-151-10 et seq.	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1160-1224	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-151 (Forms)	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1224	
9 VAC 25-160-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1224	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-170-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1224	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-10	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1225	6/30/99

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
9 VAC 25-180-30	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1228	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-40	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1228	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-50	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1228	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-60	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1229	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180-70	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1231	6/30/99
9 VAC 25-180 (Forms)	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1247-1250	
9 VAC 25-192 (Forms)	Added	15:3 VA.R. 331	
9 VAC 25-192 (Forms)	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1854	
9 VAC 25-192-40	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 323	12/1/98
9 VAC 25-192-50	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 323	12/1/98
9 VAC 25-192-60	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 323	12/1/98
9 VAC 25-192-70	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 324	12/1/98
9 VAC 25-193-70	Erratum	15:2 VA.R. 241	
9 VAC 25-430-20	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 849	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-430-30	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 853	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-430-40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 861	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-430-60	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 864	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-440-150	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 872	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-440-151	Added	15:6 VA.R. 880	1/6/99
9 VAC 25-610-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 581	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-30	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 582	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-90	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 582	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 586	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-130	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 589	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-140	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 590	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-160	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 591	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-250	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 591	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-330	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 592	1/1/99
9 VAC 25-610-400	Added	15:5 VA.R. 592	1/1/99
Title 12. Health			
12 VAC 5-90-10	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 880	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-10	Erratum	15:8 VA.R. 1099	
12 VAC 5-90-40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 882	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-50	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 883	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-60	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 883	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-70	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 883	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-80	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 883	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-90	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 885	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-90	Erratum	15:8 VA.R. 1099	
12 VAC 5-90-100	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-110	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-120	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-130	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-150	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-160	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-170	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 888	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-180	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 889	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-190	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 889	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-210	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 889	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-220	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 889	1/6/99
12 VAC 5-90-220	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4250	10/14/98
12 VAC 5-90-240	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4250	10/14/98
12 VAC 5-90-240 12 VAC 5-90-250	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4250	10/14/98
12 VAC 5-90-260	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4251	10/14/98
12 VAC 5-90-270	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4251	10/14/98

Volume 15, Issue 15

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
12 VAC 30-10-140 emer	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1942	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-10-150 emer	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1943	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-20-170	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4252	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-30 emer	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1943	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-50-70 emer	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1944	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-50-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 593	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-140	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 593	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-140	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 893	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-50-150	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 894	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-50-160	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4252	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-210	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 595	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-50-270 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1342	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-50-320 emer	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1944	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-60-40	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4254	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-60-40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 895	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-60-120	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 896	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-60-130 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1343	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-60-320	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4257	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-60-340	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4259	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-80-30	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 900	1/6/99
12 VAC 30-80-30 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1345	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-90-264	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4261	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-90-290	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4264	1/1/99
12 VAC 30-120-61 through 12 VAC 30-120-69 emer	Added	15:13 VA.R. 1944-1947	7/1/99-6/30/00
12 VAC 30-130-480 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1346	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-130-490 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1346	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-130-530 emer	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1347	1/1/99-12/31/99
12 VAC 30-140-10 through 12 VAC 30-140-50 emer	Added	15:4 VA.R. 478-480	10/23/98-10/22/99
12 VAC 30-150-10 and 12 VAC 30-150-20 emer	Added	15:4 VA.R. 481-483	10/23/98-10/22/99
12 VAC 30-160-00 through 12 VAC 30-160-299 emer	Added	15:4 VA.R. 483-486	10/23/98-10/22/99
12 VAC 30-170-10 and 12 VAC 30-170-20 emer	Added	15:4 VA.R. 487	10/23/98-10/22/99
Title 13. Housing			
13 VAC 5-51-20 emer	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2069	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-51-130 emer	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2070	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-51-135 emer	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2070	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-51-136 emer	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2070	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-61-200 emer	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2071	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-61-440 emer	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2072	3/10/99-3/9/00
13 VAC 5-100-10 emer	Added	15:10 VA.R. 1349	1/6/99-1/5/00
13 VAC 5-100-20 emer	Added	15:10 VA.R. 1350	1/6/99-1/5/00
13 VAC 10-40-20	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1829	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-130	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1832	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-160	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1834	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-210	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1835	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-220	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1835	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-40-230	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 424	10/21/98
13 VAC 10-40-230	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1835	1/28/99
13 VAC 10-180-10	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2050	3/10/99
13 VAC 10-180-50	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2051	3/10/99
	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2053	3/10/99
13 VAC 10-180-60		15:14 VA.R. 2061	3/10/99
13 VAC 10-180-60 13 VAC 10-180-70	Amended		
	Amended Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2063	3/10/99
13 VAC 10-180-70			3/10/99
13 VAC 10-180-70 13 VAC 10-180-90			3/10/99 8/20/98

ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4267	8/20/98
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 600	1/1/99
Added	15:5 VA.R. 603	1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 603	1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 604	1/1/99
Amended		1/1/99
Amended		1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 606	1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 606	1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 607	1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 608	1/1/99
Amended		1/1/99
Amended	15:5 VA.R. 615	1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		1/1/99
		., ., 00
	15.10 VA R 1313	3/3/99
		3/3/99
		3/3/99
		3/3/99
		3/3/99
		3/3/99
Amenued	13.10 VA.K. 1314	2/3/33
	Amended Added Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended Amended	Amended 15:5 VA.R. 600 Added 15:5 VA.R. 603 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 603 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 604 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 605 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 606 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 606 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 606 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 607 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 608 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 612 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 616 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 617 Amended 15:5 VA.R. 631

Volume 15, Issue 15

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 45-20-10	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1251	3/1/99
18 VAC 45-20-20	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1251	3/1/99
18 VAC 45-20 (Forms)	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1252-1253	
18 VAC 50-22-100	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1837	5/1/99
18 VAC 50-22-140	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1837	5/1/99
18 VAC 50-30-90	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1838	5/1/99
18 VAC 60-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 636	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-15	Added	15:5 VA.R. 637	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-16	Added	15:5 VA.R. 637	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-20	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 637	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-20	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 646	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-20 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1729	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 60-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 638	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 647	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-30 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1729	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 60-20-50	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 638	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-60	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 639	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-70	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 639	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-80	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 640	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-90	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 640	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 641	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 641	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-130	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 641	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-140	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 641	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-150	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 642	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-160	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 642	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-100	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 642	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-170	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 642	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-180	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 643	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-190	Added	15:5 VA.R. 644	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-195	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 644	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-220		15:5 VA.R. 644	12/23/98
18 VAC 60-20-230	Amended Amended	15:5 VA.R. 645	12/23/98
18 VAC 65-20-10	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 982	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-10		15:7 VA.R. 982	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-20 18 VAC 65-20-30	Repealed	15.7 VA.R. 984	
	Repealed		1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-40	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 984 15:7 VA.R. 984	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-50	Amended		1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-60	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 984	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-70	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 426	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-20-70 emer	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1846	2/2/99-2/1/00
18 VAC 65-20-80	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 426	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-20-90	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 427	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-20-100	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 427	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-20-110	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 984	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-120	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-120 emer	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1846	2/2/99-2/1/00
18 VAC 65-20-130	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-130 emer	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1846	2/2/99-2/1/00
18 VAC 65-20-140	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-150	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-160	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-170	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 985	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-180 through 18 VAC 65-20-230	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 986	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-235	Added	15:7 VA.R. 986	1/20/99

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 65-20-240	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 986	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-250 through 18 VAC 65-20-340	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 987	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-350	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 987	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-360 through 18 VAC 65-20-390	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-400	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-410	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-430	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-435 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1846	2/2/99-2/1/00
18 VAC 65-20-440	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 988	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-450 through 18 VAC 65-20-490	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 988-989	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-500	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 989	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-510	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-520	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-530	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-540	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-550	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-560	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-580	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 990	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-590	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-600	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-610	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-620	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-630	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 991	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-640 through 18 VAC 65-20-690	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 992-994	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-700	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 994	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-20-700	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 995	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-70	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-30	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-40	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-40	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-60	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-70	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
		15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-80 18 VAC 65-30-90	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 997	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-90	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 998	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-110	Amended		1/20/99
	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 999	
18 VAC 65-30-140	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-150	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-160	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-170	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-180	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 999	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-190	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1000	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-200	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1000	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-210	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1001	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-220	Added	15:7 VA.R. 1001	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-30-230	Added	15:7 VA.R. 1003	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-10	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-20	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-30	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-40	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 433	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-50	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 433	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-60	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 433	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-70	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 433	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-80	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 433	12/9/98
18 VAC 65-40-90	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99

Volume 15, Issue 15

	AOTION		
SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 65-40-100	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-110	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-120	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1008	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-130	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-140	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-150	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-160	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-170	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-180	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-190	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-200	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-201	Added	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-210	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1009	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-220	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-230	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-240	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-250	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-260	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-270	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-280	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-290	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-300	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-310	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-320	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1010	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-330	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1011	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-340	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1011	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-350 through 18 VAC 65-40-630	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1011-1014	1/20/99
18 VAC 65-40-640	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1014	1/20/99
18 VAC 85-40-10 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1730	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-25 emer	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-40 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-45 emer	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-50 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-60 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-65 emer	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-70 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1731	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-40-80 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1732	1/21/99-1/20/00
18 VAC 85-80-10 emer	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1847	1/29/99-1/28/00
18 VAC 85-80-11 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1848	1/29/99-1/28/00
18 VAC 85-80-12 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1848	1/29/99-1/28/00
18 VAC 85-80-35 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1848	1/29/99-1/28/00 1/29/99-1/28/00
18 VAC 85-80-40 through 18 VAC 85-80-90 emer 18 VAC 85-110-10	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1848-1849	
	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 436	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-20	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 437	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-30	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 437	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-35	Added	15:4 VA.R. 437	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-40	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 438	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-50	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 438	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-60	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 438	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-70	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-80	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-90	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-100	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-120	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-150	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 85-110-160	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 439	12/9/98
18 VAC 85-110-170	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 440	12/9/98
18 VAC 90-20-10	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 333	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-20	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 334	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-35	Added	15:3 VA.R. 334	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-40	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 334	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-50	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 335	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-60	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 335	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-70	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 335	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-80	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 335	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-90	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 336	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-95	Added	15:3 VA.R. 337	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-30	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 337	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-110	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 337	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-110	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 338	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-130	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 338	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-140	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 339	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-150	Repealed	15:3 VA.R. 339	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-160	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 339	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-170	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 339	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-180	Repealed	15:3 VA.R. 340	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-190	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 340	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-210	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-250	Repealed	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-260	Repealed	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-275	Added	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-280	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 341	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-290	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 342	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-300	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 342	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-300 emer	Amended	15:11 VA.R. 1733	1/26/99-1/25/00
18 VAC 90-20-310	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 342	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-330	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 342	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-340	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 346	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-350	Amended	15:3 VA.R. 346	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-400	Added	15:3 VA.R. 347	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-410	Added	15:3 VA.R. 347	12/3/98
18 VAC 90-20-420 through 18 VAC 90-20-460 emer	Added	15:11 VA.R. 1733-1735	1/26/99-1/25/00
18 VAC 90-30-10	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1015	1/20/99
18 VAC 90-30-30	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1015	1/20/99
18 VAC 90-30-40	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1015	1/20/99
18 VAC 90-30-70	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1016	1/20/99
18 VAC 90-30-80	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1016	1/20/99
18 VAC 90-30-90	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1016	1/20/99
18 VAC 90-30-90 18 VAC 90-30-120	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1016	1/20/99
18 VAC 90-30-120 18 VAC 90-30-140	Repealed		1/20/99
		15:7 VA.R. 1016	
18 VAC 90-30-150	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1016	1/20/99
18 VAC 90-30-160	Amended	15:7 VA.R. 1016	1/20/99
18 VAC 90-30-170 through 18 VAC 90-30-210	Repealed	15:7 VA.R. 1017	1/20/99
18 VAC 95-20-10	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 452	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-20	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 453	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-30	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 453	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-40	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 453	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-50	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 453	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-70	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-80	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98

Volume 15, Issue 15

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 95-20-90	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-100	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-110	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-120	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-130	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 454	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-140	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-150	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-160	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-170	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-175	Added	15:4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-180	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 455	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-190	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 456	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-200	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 456	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-210	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 456	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-220	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 456	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-225	Added	15:4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-230	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-240	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-250	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-260	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 457	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-270	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-280	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-290	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-300	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-310	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-320	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 458	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-330	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-340	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-350	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-360	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-370	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-380	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-390	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-400	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 459	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-410	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-420	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-430	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-440	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-450	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-460	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-470	Amended	15:4 VA.R. 460	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20-480 through 18 VAC 95-20-740	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 460-463	12/9/98
18 VAC 95-20; Appendices I, II and III	Repealed	15:4 VA.R. 463-464	12/9/98
18 VAC 105-20-10	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 902	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-15	Added	15:6 VA.R. 902	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-20	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 903	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-30	Repealed	15:6 VA.R. 903	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-40	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 903	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-45	Added	15:6 VA.R. 904	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-50	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 905	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-60	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 906	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-20-70	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 906	1/6/99
18 VAC 105-30-10	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1839	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-20	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1839	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-30	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1839	3/31/99

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 105-30-35	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1839	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-40	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1840	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-50	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1840	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-60	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1840	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-70	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1840	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-90	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1841	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-100	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1841	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-110	Repealed	15:12 VA.R. 1841	3/31/99
18 VAC 105-30-120	Amended	15:12 VA.R. 1841	3/31/99
18 VAC 110-20-10 emer	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 926	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-10	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1070	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-20	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1073	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-30	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1074	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-40	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1074	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-50	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1074	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-60	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1075	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-70	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1075	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-90	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1075	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-100	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1076	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-110	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1077	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-130 emer	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 928	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-130	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1077	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-130	Erratum	15:12 VA.R. 1865	
18 VAC 110-20-135 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 928	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-140 emer	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 929	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-170	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1077	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-190	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1077	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-200	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1078	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-210	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1078	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-220	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1079	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-230	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1079	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-240	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1079	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-260	Repealed	15:8 VA.R. 1080	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-270	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1080	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-280	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1081	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-290	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1081	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-330	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1082	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-350	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1082	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-355	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1082	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-360	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1082	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-395	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1083	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-400	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1083	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-420	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1083	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-470	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1084	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-500	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1084	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-540	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1085	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-550	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1085	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-555	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1085	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-570	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1086	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-580	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-590	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-620	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-620	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-622	Added	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-622	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1087	2/3/99
	Amended	10.0 17.11. 1000	2000

Volume 15, Issue 15

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 110-20-650	Repealed	15:8 VA.R. 1088	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-680	Amended	15:8 VA.R. 1088	2/3/99
18 VAC 110-20-690 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 929	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-700 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 929	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-710 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 930	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 110-20-720 emer	Added	15:6 VA.R. 930	11/5/98-11/4/99
18 VAC 130-20-130	Amended	15:14 VA.R. 2066	5/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 648	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 649	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 650	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 650	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-45	Added	15:5 VA.R. 650	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-45	Added	15:5 VA.R. 651	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-50 18 VAC 135-20-60		15:5 VA.R. 651	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-60 18 VAC 135-20-80	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 652	1/1/99
	Amended		
18 VAC 135-20-90	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 652	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-100	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 652	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 653	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 654	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-150	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 654	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-160	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 654	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-170	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 654	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-180	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 655	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-190	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 656	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-200	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 657	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-210	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 657	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-220	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 657	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-240	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-250	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-260	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-270	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-280	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 658	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-290	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 659	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-300	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 659	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-310	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 660	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-320	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 660	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-350	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 660	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-360	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 661	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-370	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-380	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-390	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-400	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-410	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 662	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-420	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 663	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-430	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 663	1/1/99
18 VAC 135-20-440	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 663	1/1/99
18 VAC 140-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 663	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 664	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-35	Added	15:5 VA.R. 664	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-37	Added	15:5 VA.R. 664	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-40	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 664	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-45	Added	15:5 VA.R. 665	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-50	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 665	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-60	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 667	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-70		15:5 VA.R. 668	12/23/98

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
18 VAC 140-20-80	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 668	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-90	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 668	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 668	12/23/98
18 VAC 140-20-150	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 669	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-10	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 687	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-30	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-40	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-50	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-60	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-70	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 688	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-75	Added	15:5 VA.R. 690	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-80	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 690	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-90	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 690	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-100	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 690	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-110	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 691	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-115	Added	15:5 VA.R. 691	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-120	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 692	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-130	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 692	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-140	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 692	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-150	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 693	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-160	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 693	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-170	Repealed	15:5 VA.R. 693	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-180	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 694	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-185	Added	15:5 VA.R. 694	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-190	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 694	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-190	Erratum	15:9 VA.R. 1276	
18 VAC 150-20-195	Added	15:5 VA.R. 696	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-200	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 696	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-200	Erratum	15:9 VA.R. 1276	
18 VAC 150-20-205	Added	15:5 VA.R. 701	12/23/98
18 VAC 150-20-210	Amended	15:5 VA.R. 701	12/23/98
18 VAC 155-20-40	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1938	5/1/99
Title 19. Public Safety			
19 VAC 30-20-80	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1254	3/17/99
19 VAC 30-20-220	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1254	3/17/99
19 VAC 30-20-250	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1254	3/17/99
19 VAC 30-20 (Forms)	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2078-2079	
19 VAC 30-70-5	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 177	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-7	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 178	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-10	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 178	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-50	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 180	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-70 through 19 VAC 30-70-100	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 181-184	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-140	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 185	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-160	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 187	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-180	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 190	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-180	Erratum	15:8 VA.R. 1099	
19 VAC 30-70-200	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 192	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-440 through 19 VAC 30-70-500	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 192-203	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-550	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 207	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-570	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 208	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-580	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 209	11/11/98
19 VAC 30-70-680	Amended	15:2 VA.R. 211	11/11/98
Title 20. Public Utilities and Telecommunications			
20 VAC 5-400-151	Added	15:14 VA.R. 2068	7/1/99

Volume 15, Issue 15

SECTION NUMBER	ACTION	CITE	EFFECTIVE DATE
Title 22. Social Services			
22 VAC 40-35-10	Amended	15:6 VA.R. 922	1/6/99
22 VAC 40-35-125	Added	15:6 VA.R. 924	1/6/99
22 VAC 40-40-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:9 VA.R. 1256	2/17/99
22 VAC 40-41-10 et seq.	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1256-1258	2/17/99
22 VAC 40-41 (Forms)	Added	15:9 VA.R. 1258	
22 VAC 40-71-10	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1259	2/18/99
22 VAC 40-71-490	Amended	15:9 VA.R. 1262	2/18/99
22 VAC 40-140-10 et seq.	Repealed	15:10 VA.R. 1323	3/3/99
22 VAC 40-141-10 through 22 VAC 40-141-210	Added	15:10 VA.R. 1323-1331	3/3/99
22 VAC 40-141 (Forms)	Added	15:10 VA.R. 1331-1338	
22 VAC 40-325-10 and 22 VAC 40-325-20 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1849-1850	4/1/99-3/31/00
Title 23. Taxation			
23 VAC 10-110-225 through 23 VAC 10-110-229 emer	Added	15:12 VA.R. 1851-1853	2/4/99-2/3/00
23 VAC 10-110-228	Erratum	15:14 VA.R. 2081	
Title 24. Transportation and Motor Vehicles			
24 VAC 30-200-10	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4267	10/14/98
24 VAC 30-200-10	Erratum	15:1 VA.R. 50 (4396)	
24 VAC 30-200-20	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4268	10/14/98
24 VAC 30-200-30	Amended	14:26 VA.R. 4269	10/14/98
24 VAC 30-200-40	Added	14:26 VA.R. 4270	10/14/98
24 VAC 30-200-40	Erratum	15:1 VA.R. 50	
24 VAC 30-350-10	Amended	15:13 VA.R. 1939	2/22/99
24 VAC 30-470-10	Amended	15:10 VA.R. 1339	1/11/99

NOTICES OF INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION

Symbol Key

† Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register

TITLE 9. ENVIRONMENT

VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Waste Management Board intends to consider amending regulations entitled: 9 VAC 20-60-12 et seg. Virginia Hazardous Waste Management Regulations (Amendment 15). The purpose of the proposed action is to update the regulations regarding transportation, treatment, storage, and disposal of hazardous waste so as to protect the public health, natural resources and environment; maintain consistency with federal requirements; and maintain authorization. By maintaining the equivalence of its regulations with those issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (RCRA) and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 (HSWA), the Commonwealth remains eligible to carry out its own hazardous waste management program and be an authorized state under the federal acts.

Amendment 15 will consider incorporation of changes in the federal regulations in Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations occurring since Amendment 14 through July 1, 1998, including amendments promulgated in the Federal Register on, at least, the following dates: January 3, 1995, December 6, 1994, January 13, 1995, February 9, 1995, April 17, 1995, May 12, 1995, April 4, 1995, May 19, 1995, June 29, 1995, July 11, 1995, September 29, 1995, October 30, 1995, December 11, 1995, February 9, 1996, March 26,1996, April 8, 1996 (2), April 30, 1996, June 28, 1996, July 10, 1996, August 26, 1996, February 17, 1997, April 12, 1996, July 1, 1996, December 6, 1994, May 19, 1995, September 29, 1995, November 13, 1995, February 9, 1996, June 5, 1996, November 23, 1996, January 14, 1997, February 12, 1997, May 12, 1997, June 13, 1997, June 17, 1997, July 14, 1997, August 28, 1997, December 5, 1997, December 8, 1997, April 15, 1998, May 4, 1998, June 29, 1998, May 6, 1998, July 14, 1998, May 26, 1998, June 8, 1998, and June 19,1998. These amendments of the federal regulations address, at least, the following items:

1. Revisions of the Universal Treatment Standards regarding land disposal restrictions or related changes;

2. Revisions to listings and exemptions of certain carbamate chemicals production wastes (U and K listings);

3. Housekeeping changes related to adoption errors and obsolete provisions;

4. Adoption of additional test methods related to rules that prohibit liquids in landfills;

5. New rules about the public participation process in the permitting of storage, treatment and disposal facilities and for test burns at incinerators and combustion facilities;

6. Correction of adoption errors in the exclusion rules for recovered oil which is recycled;

7. Addition of rules related to Phase III of the land disposal restriction and treatment standards concerning carbamate pesticide production wastes, primary aluminum production wastes, characteristic wastes, listed wastes, and wastes that are diluted;

8. Identification of import and export wastes subject to the graduated system of controls under the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development;

9. Revisions of rules for disposal of wastes from conditionally exempt small quantity generators;

10. Adoption of additional air standards for the control of organic emissions from tanks, surface impoundments, containers and miscellaneous units, including during accumulation of waste on-site;

11. Extensions of the national capacity variance (under Phase III of the Land Disposal Restrictions) for spent potliners for primary aluminum production;

12. Adoption of Military Munitions Rule, which identifies when conventional and chemical military munitions become a hazardous waste, provides rules for the safe storage and transport of such waste, changes rules regarding emergency responses involving munitions and explosives, and exempts generators and transporters from manifest requirements on right-of-ways that are on or along the border of contiguous properties under the control of the same person;

13. Adoption of land disposal restrictions - Phase IV, which establishes treatment standards under the land disposal restrictions for waste from wood preserving operations, revises record keeping related to land disposal restrictions, regulates polymerizations as a treatment alternative, clarifies de minimis amounts exemption of characteristic wastewaters, and excludes processed circuit boards and scrap metal from regulation as hazardous wastes;

14. Update the incorporation by reference citation of SW-846, Third Edition, "Test Methods for Evaluation Solid Waste, Physical/Chemical Methods," to include changes through January 13, 1997 (through Update III);

15. Revisions and withdrawals of certain rules related to listing of carbamate wastes;

16. Extension of alternate treatment standard for carbamate under the land disposal restrictions (Aug. 26, 1997, to Aug. 26, 1998);

17. Clarifications of the rules for authorization of variances from the treatment standards of the land disposal restriction regulations, and incorporation of rules requiring public participation in site specific variance considerations;

18. Amendments and clarifications of the air standards for the control of organic emissions from tanks, surface impoundments, and container;

19. Exclusions from regulation as hazardous waste of the condensates derived from the overhead gases from kraft mill steam strippers under specificed conditions;

20. Additions of specific organobromine production wastes to the list of hazardous wastes and listings of land disposal treatment standards for those wastes;

21. Correction and adoption of rules related to the management standards of used oil contaminated with PCB's and other used oil;

22. Adoption of treatment standards under the land disposal restrictions for metal wastes, mineral processing waste and 12 metal constituents; adoption of land disposal prohibition and treatment standards for mineral processing waste that are ignitable, corrosive or reactive; amendment of the definition of when secondary materials being recycled are solid waste so as to exclude certain mineral processing waste; amendment of the definition; adoption of treatment standards under the Bevill exemption; adoption of treatment standards under the land disposal restrictions for contaminated soils as waste; and adoption of corrections and clarifying provisions to the land disposal restrictions;

23. Exclusion from regulation as solid waste those fuels produced from a hazardous waste which is comparable to some currently used fossil fuels, and addition of provisions to make it easier for existing facilities to make changes to their existing permit.

In addition to the promulgated amendments of federal regulations, Amendment 15 may consider the following items:

1. Errors and omissions resulting from previous amendments of the regulations, including the change in the format of the regulations effected by Amendment 14;

2. Several amendments to the requirements for the transportation of hazardous waste, including insurance requirements; financial assurance requirements for hazardous waste management facilities; and documentation demonstrating compliance with financial assurance requirements which were recommended by commenters regarding Amendment 14, but which could not be addressed in Amendment 14 for procedural reasons;

3. Revision of the schedule of permit application fees to reflect increased cost of permit reviews;

4. Further use or expansion of the format of incorporation by reference of federal regulations;

5. Inclusion of additional waste streams as listed Universal Wastes;

6. Alterations or clarifications of the regulations concerning transfer stations and the definition of transfer stations to prevent inappropriate siting of the transfer station and abusive practices; and

7. Alterations or clarifications of the regulations concerning receipt of waste from conditionally exempt small quantity generators to prevent threats caused by amassing such waste from several generators in an inappropriate manner.

A technical advisory committee will advise the Department of Environmental Quality on what amended regulatory text to recommend to the board as proposed regulations. This panel will advise the department on less intrusive and less burdensome alternatives, where such exist, and during the public participation process, the general public will also be asked to suggest less intrusive and burdensome alternatives. The vast majority of changes to be considered will be the direct result of incorporation of federal regulatory text into Commonwealth regulations, and consistency with federal regulations is required by the Act and necessary for authorization of the Commonwealth's program by USEPA. Many of the changes to federal regulations that would be incorporated are themselves a reduction in intrusion and burden on the regulated community from prior federal requirement currently incorporated into the Commonwealth regulations. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 10.1-1402 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until June 1, 1999.

Contact: Robert G. Wickline, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 698-4213, FAX (804) 698-4327 or (804) 698-4021/TTY

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-127; Filed March 10, 1999, 10:26 a.m.

STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the State Water Control Board intends to consider promulgating regulations entitled: **9 VAC 25-630-10 et seq. General Virginia Pollution Abatement Permit Regulation for Confined Poultry Feeding Operations.** This rulemaking is proposed in order to implement the requirements of § 62.1-44.17:1.1 of the Code of Virginia. The general permit will establish requirements for the storage, treatment and management of poultry waste,

including dry litter. Owners or operators of confined poultry feeding operations will be required to develop and implement a nutrient management plan, track and account for poultry waste and ensure proper waste storage. The statute requires that the board adopt this general permit regulation no later than October 1, 2000, and that after October 1, 2001, all persons owning or operating confined poultry feeding operations shall operate in compliance with its provisions.

A technical advisory committee will be formed to assist in the development of the regulations. The statute that mandates the development of this general permit regulation also stipulates that membership on this advisory committee shall be balanced among organizations and persons expressing an interest in the program and shall include a minimum of three representatives of poultry growers, three representatives of commercial poultry processors and three representatives of environmental organizations. The primary function of the committee will be to develop recommendations to the board on the content of the general permit through a process of negotiation and consensus. Persons who desire to be on the committee should notify the agency contact person in writing by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, April 16, 1999, and provide name, address, telephone number and organization represented (if any). Notification of the composition of the technical advisory committee will be sent to all applicants. Following publication of the draft general permit regulation in the Virginia Register, the board will hold at least one public hearing to provide opportunity for public comment. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 62.1-44.15(10) and 62.1-44.17:1.1 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until 4:30 p.m. on Friday, April 16, 1999.

Contact: Richard Ayers, Technical Services Administrator, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA, 23240, telephone (804) 698-4075 or FAX (804) 698-4032.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-113; Filed February 24, 1999, 9:20 a.m.

TITLE 12. HEALTH

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Medical Assistance Services intends to consider promulgating regulations entitled: **Program for All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE): 12 VAC 30-10-10 et seq. State Plan under Title XIX of the Social Security Act Medical** Assistance Program; General Provisions, 12 VAC 30-50-10 et seq. Amount, Duration and Scope of Medical and Remedial Care Services, and 12 VAC 30-120-10 et seq. Waivered Services. The purpose of the proposed action is to promulgate permanent regulations, essentially like the existing emergency regulations that provide for the administration of the Program of All-Inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE). The agency does not intend to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until April 14, 1999, to Diana Thorpe, Appeals Division, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219.

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-8850.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-112; Filed February 24, 1999, 11:27 a.m.

TITLE 18. PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING

BOARD OF MEDICINE

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-20-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Medicine, Osteopathy, Podiatry, Chiropractic, and Physician Acupuncture.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-130; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-31-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Physical Therapy.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-131; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-40-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Respiratory Care Practitioners.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-132; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:47 a.m.

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-50-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Physician Assistants.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-133; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-80-10 et seq.** Regulations for Licensure of Occupational Therapists. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-134; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-101-10** et seq. Regulations Governing the Licensure of Radiologic Technologists and Radiologic Technologists-Limited. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-135; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 85-110-10** et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Licensed Acupuncturists. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9908 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-136; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

BOARD OF NURSING

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Nursing intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 90-20-10 et seq. Regulations of the Board of Nursing.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for nurses and nurse aides regulated by the Board of Nursing in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9909 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-137; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:47 a.m.

BOARD OF PHARMACY

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Pharmacy intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 110-20-10 et seq. Virginia Board of Pharmacy Regulations.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners and facilities regulated by the

Volume 15, Issue 15

Board of Pharmacy in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Elizabeth Scott Russell, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9911 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-139; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Pharmacy intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 110-30-10** et seq. Regulations for Practitioners of the Healing Arts to Sell Controlled Substances. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in renewal fees for physicians licensed to sell drugs by the Board of Pharmacy in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Elizabeth Scott Russell, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9911 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-138; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

BOARD OF LICENSED PROFESSIONAL COUNSELORS, MARRIAGE AND FAMILY THERAPISTS AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT PROFESSIONALS

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 115-20-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Licensed Professional Counseling.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover

Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-140; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 115-30-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Certification of Substance Abuse Counselors.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-141; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:47 a.m.

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 115-40-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Certification of Rehabilitation Providers.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication. Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-142; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 115-50-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Marriage and Family Therapists.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Licensed Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists and Substance Abuse Treatment Professionals, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-143; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGY

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Psychology intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 125-20-10** et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Psychology. The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, Board of Psychology, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9933 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-144; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

BOARD OF VETERINARY MEDICINE

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Veterinary Medicine intends to consider amending regulations entitled: **18 VAC 150-20-10 et seq. Regulations Governing the Practice of Veterinary Medicine.** The purpose of the proposed action is to consider an increase in certain fees for practitioners regulated by the Board of Medicine in order to comply with statutory requirements for revenues to be sufficient to cover the expenditures of the board. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999.

Contact: Elizabeth A. Carter, Ph.D., Executive Director, Board of Veterinary Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9915 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-145; Filed March 23, 1999, 11:48 a.m.

•

TITLE 23. TAXATION

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

† Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Taxation intends to consider amending regulations entitled: 23 VAC 10-110-10 et seq. Individual Income Tax: Qualified Equity and Subordinated Debt Investments Tax Credit. The purpose of the proposed action is to prescribe procedures for claiming the Qualified Equity and Subordinated Debt Investments Tax Credit Debt Investments Tax Credit and the process for the allocation of tax credits among taxpayers when requests for the credit exceed \$5 million in a calendar year. The result of this action will replace emergency regulations with permanent regulations. The agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: §§ 58.1-203 and 58.1-339.4 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until May 12, 1999, to David T. Mason, Department of Taxation, Office of Tax Policy, P.O. Box 1880, Richmond, VA 23220-1880, or e-mail dmason@tax.state.va.us.

Contact: Michael M. Melson, Executive Assistant for Tax Policy, Department of Taxation, Office of Tax Policy, P.O. Box 1880, Richmond, VA 23220-1880, telephone (804) 367-8010 or FAX (804) 367-0045.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-146; Filed March 24, 1999, 9:39 a.m.

TITLE 24. TRANSPORTATION AND MOTOR VEHICLES

DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES

† Withdrawal of Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Motor Vehicles has **WITHDRAWN** the Notice of Intended Regulatory Action for promulgating **24 VAC 20-120-10 et seq. Virginia Commercial Driver Training School Regulations**, which was published in 12:18 VA.R. 2368 May 27, 1996. The Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission review resulted in changes to the initial draft of the proposed regulations. Based on the two-year delay in processing and the changes made to the proposed regulation, the agency is withdrawing this regulatory action and intends to begin this regulatory action again in the near future.

FINAL REGULATIONS

For information concerning Final Regulations, see Information Page.

Symbol Key

Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. *Italic type* indicates new text. Language which has been stricken indicates text to be deleted. [Bracketed language] indicates a change from the proposed text of the regulation.

TITLE 4. CONSERVATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES

MARINE RESOURCES COMMISSION

<u>REGISTRAR'S NOTICE:</u> The following regulations filed by the Marine Resources Commission are exempt from the Administrative Process Act in accordance with § 9-6.14:4.1 F of the Code of Virginia; however, the commission is required to publish the full text of final regulations.

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 4 VAC 20-1030-10 et seq. Management Plan for the Ungranted State Lands in Accomack and Northampton Counties.

Statutory Authority: §§ 28.2-103 and 28.2-1504 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: March 15, 1999.

Summary:

The management plan was developed with the assistance of the Virginia Coastal Lands Management Advisory Council to fulfill the requirements of § 28.2-1504 of the Code of Virginia. The first part of the plan is devoted to a description of the lands involved, their features and their surroundings. The second part contains a description of the important natural resources which are contained thereon or are directly supported by these lands. The final section is devoted to 12 key management issues.

Agency Contact: Copies of the regulation may be obtained from Robert W. Grabb, Chief, Habitat Management, Marine Resources Commission, P.O. Box 756, Newport News, VA 23607-0756, telephone (757) 247-2252.

CHAPTER 1030.

MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE UNGRANTED STATE LANDS IN ACCOMACK AND NORTHAMPTON COUNTIES.

4 VAC 20-1030-10. Purpose.

To date 28,507 acres of ungranted state lands have been identified in Accomack and Northampton Counties. These ungranted state lands, which include state-owned beaches, marshes, meadowlands, commons, and other coastal lands, constitute a fragile and dynamic natural coastal resource of the Commonwealth of Virginia. As set forth in § 28.2-1504 of the Code of Virginia, the goal of this management plan shall be to conserve and protect the shores of the sea, marsh and meadowlands, and the natural values and natural processes associated therewith. To the extent not inconsistent with that goal, the management plan shall also consider the traditional uses of such properties and the promotion of tourism and commerce.

The purpose of this plan is the development of a comprehensive conservation and management strategy whereby these lands may be managed in such a manner as to conserve and protect the natural values associated with those lands (habitats, food webs, plant and animal species) while accommodating compatible traditional uses. This plan envisions single agency management with involvement of local interests and state natural resource agencies in the conservation and management of these lands, and provides a mechanism for the resolution of conflicting uses. These lands, and their management, do not stand alone. They are, especially on the Eastern Shore seaside, an essential and integral part of a large and complex working ecosystem which is subject to regulation and management by numerous agencies, government and nongovernment, at many different levels.

4 VAC 20-1030-20. Description of ungranted state lands.

A. Location and boundaries. This management plan covers 28,507 acres of ungranted state lands on Virginia's Eastern Shore. 27,722 acres are located on the seaside between the barrier islands and the mainland. 785 acres are located on the bayside. Although most of these lands are marsh, there are some uplands and fringe marsh included in the acreage identified as being state owned. The state lands covered by this plan have been surveyed by the Virginia Marine Resources Commission (VMRC) which produced a series of maps depicting the state lands. The maps have been recorded in the clerks' offices of Accomack and Northampton Counties and can be found at the Accomack County Courthouse in Accomac and at the Northampton County Courthouse in Eastville.

B. Surrounding demographic features.

1. Northampton County. Northampton County is located on the southern half of the Delmarva Peninsula in Virginia, known as Virginia's Eastern Shore. The southern tip of the Eastern Shore is connected to the Virginia mainland by the Chesapeake Bay Bridge-Tunnel.

Northampton County is approximately 35 miles in length with an average width of six miles. The county extends from the Accomack County line in the north to Fisherman Island at the southern tip of the peninsula. The county encompasses about 360 square miles or 229,947 acres of land, tidal marshes, bayside creeks and barrier islands.

More than half of the total acres in Northampton County are marshes, bayside creeks, and barrier islands. Twenty-five percent of the land is in agricultural and

forest use. Only 3.0% of the land is developed for residential and commercial use. The remaining portion is undeveloped.

Northampton County is governed by a Board of Supervisors. The county seat is in Eastville. According to statistics published in the 1990 census, the population of Northampton County is 13,061. The county is predominantly rural with occasional small residential centers. The basis of the economy is agriculture and seafood. The main occupations are in retail trade; the agriculture, forestry and fishing industries; manufacturing; construction: tourism: and health/education services.

2. Accomack County. Accomack County is located on the northern half of Virginia's Eastern Shore. Accomack County is approximately 45 miles long with an average width of 15 miles. The county stretches from the Northampton County line at the south to the Maryland state line at the north, and out to Tangier and Smith Islands in the Chesapeake Bay.

Accomack County encompasses approximately 476 square miles, or 300,649 acres of mainland, marsh and barrier islands. Sixty-six percent of the mainland is in agricultural and forest use. Twenty-three percent of the land is tidal marshes and barrier islands, and the remaining 11% is developed for residential and commercial use.

Accomack County is governed by a Board of Supervisors. The county seat is in Accomac. According to statistics published in the 1990 census, the population of Accomack County is 31,703. The main occupations are in retail trade; manufacturing; health/education; tourism; and the agriculture, farming and fishing industries.

C. Climate. The climate of the Eastern Shore is coastal with mild winters and warm, humid summers.

D. Land use.

1. Historic uses. The ungranted state lands covered by this management plan have historically been open to the public for traditional subsistence and recreational uses. Open access to beaches, marshes and meadowlands has been allowed in the past for recreational activities such as hunting, fishing, fowling, trapping, camping, salvaging, and egging. In addition, commercial harvest of fowl, furbearers, finfish, shellfish, and terrapin has been allowed historically subject to state and federal regulations and, for personal and family use, by local citizens for centuries. These rights are intrinsic to the commons concept recognized in Virginia statutes and such uses are supported by historical precedent and general usage.

2. Current uses. Ungranted state lands are currently used for recreational and commercial activities, subject to state and federal regulations. It should be noted that certain historical uses, such as egging, are no longer permissible under current legislation. This plan does not change existing laws and regulations concerning recreational and commercial activities or other traditional uses of the ungranted state lands. If it is, however, found that these activities threaten the natural integrity of these lands, it may be necessary to revise existing laws and regulations or to establish new guidelines or policies. Such changes would be in accordance with established procedures.

3. Surrounding land holdings.

a. Accomack County. The land surrounding the ungranted state lands in Accomack County fall into two categories of the Accomack zoning ordinance: (i) the agriculture district which covers portions of the county occupied by various open uses such as marsh lands, beaches, forests, parks and farms; and (ii) the Barrier Island District. In addition, Accomack County has a wetlands ordinance and a Chesapeake Bay preservation ordinance which overlay the zoning ordinance. Any development in these zoning districts is subject to the restrictions and regulations of the Accomack zoning ordinance. The county's future land use plans are detailed in the Accomack Comprehensive Plan, Section 5.

b. Northampton County. The land surrounding the ungranted state lands in Northampton County is currently zoned as an agriculture/residential district. There are, however, several ordinances that overlay the agriculture district. These are the Chesapeake Bay/Atlantic Ocean Preservation Area, the wetlands ordinance, and the primary sand dune ordinance. The future land use plan for Northampton County is detailed in Part II of the Northampton Comprehensive Plan.

4. The Nature Conservancy land holdings. The Nature Conservancy, a private, nonprofit conservation organization, owns and manages 14 islands, saltmarsh tracts, and adjacent mainland sites totaling 40,000 acres on Virginia's Eastern Shore. This area is called the Virginia Coast Reserve, and it has been designated a Biosphere Reserve by the United Nations Educational, Scientific, and Cultural Organization (UNESCO) in its Man and the Biosphere Programme, recognizing it as one of the world's most important ecosystems. The Nature Conservancy is working to protect significant ecological values on Virginia's Eastern Shore.

5. Federal land holdings. The federal government has extensive holdings on Virginia's Eastern Shore. The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service administers the National Wildlife Refuge System for the protection and conservation of fish and wildlife including those threatened with extinction. The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service has two offices, the Chincoteague National Wildlife Refuge and the Eastern Shore National Wildlife Refuge, that manage the federal holdings on Virginia's Eastern Shore. The federal holdings are:

Chincoteague National Wildlife Refuge:

Assateague - 9,459 acres

Chincoteague - 550 acres

Morris Island - 427 acres

Assawoman Island - 1,434 acres

Metomkin Island - 174 acres

Cedar Island - 1,250 acres

Eastern Shore National Wildlife Refuge - 752 acres

Fisherman Island National Wildlife Refuge - 1,825 acres

Wallops Island National Wildlife Refuge - 3,376 acres (3,000 acres owned by NASA)

6. State land holdings. In addition to the ungranted state lands covered by this management plan, the Commonwealth of Virginia owns lands designated as natural areas and state parks on the Eastern Shore. These are:

Wreck and Bone Island - a natural area preserve managed by the Department of Conservation and Recreation - 1,380 acres

Parker's Marsh - a natural area managed by the Department of Conservation and Recreation - 750 acres

Kiptopeke State Park - managed by the Department of Conservation and Recreation, Division of State Parks -375 acres

Mockhorn Island - a wildlife management area managed by the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries - 7,642 acres

Saxis Marsh - a wildlife management area managed by the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries -5,574.34 acres

7. Local land holdings.

Raccoon Park - located in Northampton County - 60 acres

4 VAC 20-1030-30. Resources.

A. Physical features.

1. Introduction. The Eastern Shore of Virginia lies on the Atlantic Coastal Plain where the geology is characterized by layers of unconsolidated sediments (sand, silt, gravel) over deeply buried bedrock. Marshes and some other wetland types contain significant amounts of peat (partly decayed vegetation) at or near the surface. The soils and hydrology of the ungranted state lands on the seaside and bayside have not been completely identified. In 1976, the Nature Conservancy issued a study of the barrier islands which included detailed descriptions of the geology, soils, and hydrology of the Eastern Shore and in 1993, the Division of Mines, Minerals, and Energy produced a geologic map of Virginia. Until the sources of information are updated, they are the best sources of information on the physical resources of the Eastern Shore.

2. Seaside lands. Barrier islands extend along the eastern side of the Eastern Shore peninsula. Virginia's Barrier Islands parallel the peninsula from the Maryland state line to the southern tip at Fisherman Island, and lie within Accomack and Northampton Counties.

The barrier islands are characterized by broad beaches and sand dunes on the eastern shores and extensive marshes on their inner coasts. The islands are composed of sands deposited by the ocean. Between the barrier islands and the mainland lies a maze of tidal flats, salt marshes, tidal channels, and shallow bays. The tidal marshes, of which most of the ungranted state lands are comprised, are an important aquatic ecosystem. The Waterway Along the Coast of Virginia (WCV) winds through the marsh, providing boat passage and access to much of the area.

The barrier islands undergo constant change and are occasionally breached at high tide. Due to coastal dynamics, some of the areas that are now tidal marshes may become beach areas in the future.

3. Bayside lands. The western side of the Eastern Shore peninsula fronts on the Chesapeake Bay. This shore has a varied physiography including islands, high bluffs, dunes, flat sandy beaches, tidal flats, and marshes. The entire west coast of the peninsula is penetrated by a complex system of tidal creeks.

B. Habitats of the ungranted state lands.

1. Salt marshes. The majority of the ungranted state lands consist of salt marsh. The dominant vegetation on these marshes is salt marsh cordgrass. A short form of this species grows in the interior of the marshes; a taller form normally lines the channels and guts. The salt marshes provide spawning and nursery grounds for fish and food for waterfowl and wildlife, deter shoreline erosion, and control water quality by trapping sediment.

2. Other habitats. A small percentage of the ungranted state lands are habitats other than salt marsh. These include fastlands, tree-lined ridges, and shrub habitats dominated by such species as marsh elder, groundsel tree, and wax myrtle; shell piles associated with the margins of some of the marshes built up to an elevation slightly above high tide; sandy berms which may accrete along the edges of some of the marshes; tidal flats, salt ponds, and pannes (small shallow saltwater ponds) scattered throughout the marshes; and wrack, the debris washed up along the high tide line.

C. Shellfish and finfish of the Eastern Shore. The seafood industry in Virginia is one of the Eastern Shore's oldest and most successful industries. Commercial and recreational fishing and aquaculture contribute significantly to the

economy of the Eastern Shore. Shellfish and finfish are found in the waters surrounding the Eastern Shore. Oysters, clams, and crabs are commercially important shellfish and crustaceans. Commercially and recreationally important finfish include menhaden, flounder, scup, striped bass, herring, mullet, weakfish, bluefish, Norfolk spot, croaker, and sea trout.

D. Game species of the Eastern Shore. The only large game on the Eastern Shore is the white-tailed deer. Small game is plentiful and the wide variety of small game found on the Eastern Shore includes the cottontail rabbit, bobwhite (quail), mourning dove, turkey, woodcock, opossum, weasel, skunk, muskrat, red and gray fox, raccoon, river otter, mink, and squirrel. The Eastern Shore is also an important area for migratory waterfowl including ducks, geese, rails, and other migratory game birds.

E. Birds of the eastern shore. The most outstanding biological resources of the ungranted state lands are the bird communities they support. During the spring and summer no less than 25 different sensitive (rare, threatened, endangered, or highly vulnerable) species of gulls, terns, herons, ibis, and shorebirds use the ungranted state lands for nesting or foraging or both. According to the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries comprehensive bird survey, a total of 34,536 colonial birds nested in Northampton and Accomack Counties in 1993.

Habitat quality and diversity as well as the undeveloped nature of the area contribute to the importance of ungranted state lands in protecting sensitive species. In addition to waterfowl, shorebird and songbird species, colonial ground nesters such as the common tern and colonial shrub nesters such as the black-crowned night-heron use the ungranted state lands during all or a portion of the year. The comprehensive bird survey also identified threatened species such as the gull-billed tern, rare species such as the black skimmer, and sensitive species such as the laughing gull.

Many migratory birds using the Atlantic Flyway pass through the Eastern Shore on their spring and fall migrations to Central and South America and the Caribbean. This area is thought to be one of the most important focal points or "staging areas" for raptor and passerine migration on the east coast of the United States. Large concentrations of waterfowl and other migratory birds utilize these areas for over-wintering as well.

F. State and federally listed endangered and threatened species. Section 1538 of the Federal Endangered Species Act, 16 USC §§ 1531-1544, makes it illegal for any person subject to the jurisdiction of the United States to "take" any federally endangered or threatened species of fish or wildlife without a special exemption. Under this Act, "take" means to harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture, collect, or to attempt to engage in any such conduct. Harm has been further defined to consist of acts that may include significant habitat modification or degradation that results in the killing or injury of individuals by significantly impairing the essential behavioral patterns, including breeding, feeding or sheltering.

The Federal Endangered Species Act also provides protection measures for species listed under the law as threatened or endangered. These protection measures include recovery planning, mechanisms for cooperative management among federal and state agencies, habitat protection, and funding for state agencies for research and management of listed species.

The State Endangered Species Act, § 29.1-563 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, is administered by the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries. This act prohibits the taking, transportation, processing, sale or offer for sale within the Commonwealth of any fish or wildlife listed as a threatened or endangered species on the Federal Endangered Species List except as permitted. It further authorizes the listing of additional endangered or threatened species, not appearing on the federal list, that are likewise protected.

The Plant Protection Bureau of the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services of the Commonwealth of Virginia administers the Endangered Plant and Insect Species Act, § 3.1-1020 et seq. of the Code of Virginia. This act makes it illegal for any person to dig, take, cut, possess, or otherwise collect, remove, transport, process, sell, offer for sale or give away any species native to or occurring in the wild in Virginia that are listed as threatened or endangered species except as specifically permitted, or when the plants or insects occur on the "taker's" own land.

Several mammals, birds, insects, and plants listed as threatened or endangered on federal and state lists have been identified on or in the waters surrounding Virginia's Eastern Shore.

These are:

1. Mammals:

Delmarva Peninsula Fox Squirrel (Sciurus niger cinereus) - listed as endangered on both the federal and state endangered species lists.

Bottlenose Dolphin (Tursiops truncatus), Manatee (Trichechus manatus), Harbor Seal (Phoca vitulina), Harbor Porpoise (Phocoena phocoena), Humpback Whale (Megaptera novaeangliae) and Fin Whale (Balaenoptera physalus) - listed as endangered or protected by the federal Marine Mammal Protection Act.

2. Birds:

Bald Eagle (Haliaeetus Leucocephalus) - listed as threatened on both the federal and state lists.

Peregrine Falcon (Falco peregrinus) - listed as endangered on both the federal and state endangered species lists.

Wilson's Plover (Charadrius wilsonia) - listed as endangered on the state endangered species list.

Piping Plover (Charadrius melodus) - listed as threatened on both the federal and state lists.

Gull-billed Tern (Sterna nilotica) - listed as threatened on the state list.

Henslow's Sparrow (Ammodramus henslowii) - listed as threatened on the state list.

3. Insects:

Northeastern Beach Tiger Beetle (Cicindela dorsalis) - listed as threatened on the federal list.

4. Plants:

Sea-Beach Pigweed (Amaranthus pumilus) - listed as threatened on the federal list.

5. Reptiles:

Loggerhead (Caretta caretta), Leatherback (Dermochelys coriacea), Kemp's Ridley (Lepidochelys kempii), and Green Sea (Chelonia mydas) Turtles listed as threatened or endangered on both the federal and state lists.

The Division of Natural Heritage of the Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation has compiled a list of the Natural Heritage Resources of Virginia's Eastern Shore. This list, and an explanation of the global, federal and state rarity rankings, are available from the department upon request.

G. Resource protection laws. Resource protection relies on a number of existing federal and state laws and regulations. Listed below are some of the state laws directly affecting the ungranted state lands:

1. § 28.2-1200 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, which provides that all beds of the bays, rivers, creeks and the shores of the sea within the jurisdiction of the Commonwealth shall remain the property of the Commonwealth and may be used as a common by all the people of the Commonwealth for the purpose of fishing, fowling, and taking and catching oysters and other shellfish.

2. § 28.2-1201 of the Code of Virginia provides that all islands which rise from lands which are ungranted shall remain in public ownership and shall be managed pursuant to the provisions of Article 2 (§ 28.2-1503 et seq.) of Chapter 15 of Title 28.2 of the Code of Virginia.

3. § 28.2-1300 et seq. of the Code of Virginia defines the powers and duties of the Commissioner of the Virginia Marine Resources Commission (VMRC) to preserve and protect the despoliation and destruction of wetlands, and declares that the Commissioner shall manage all unappropriated marsh or meadowlands lying on the Eastern Shore of Virginia which remain ungranted pursuant to the provisions of Article 2 (§ 28.2-1503 et seq.) of Chapter 15 of Title 28.2 of the Code of Virginia.

4. § 28.2-1400 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, which provides that the Commissioner of the VMRC shall

preserve and protect coastal primary sand dunes and beaches and prevent their despoliation and destruction and maximize their ecological value.

5. § 28.2-1500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, which provides for the protection and management of ungranted shores of the sea, marsh, and meadowlands under the authority of the Virginia Marine Resources Commission.

4 VAC 20-1030-40. The management plan.

A. Management policies. Most of the ungranted state lands addressed by this plan are wetlands. It has long been the public policy of the Commonwealth of Virginia to preserve wetlands and to prevent their despoliation and destruction and to accommodate necessary economic development in a manner consistent with wetlands preservation. In keeping with this policy, it is the goal of this management plan to conserve and protect the shores of the sea, marsh, meadowlands, commons, and other coastal lands subject to this plan, and the natural values and natural processes associated with these lands and the complex working ecosystem of which they comprise an important part. In a manner consistent with this goal, the management plan shall also consider the traditional uses of such properties and the promotion of tourism and commerce.

State owned lands defined in the management plan will, subject to state and federal laws, be kept open and accessible for the use of the citizens of the Commonwealth. Traditional compatible uses (e.g., hunting, fishing and fowling) will be accommodated as provided for by local, state or federal laws.

Resource protection will rely on a network of federal, state and local laws and regulations. Requirements for local, state and federal permits and licenses will be observed, and the usual application procedures will be followed. Surveillance and enforcement mechanisms will remain in effect. The ungranted state lands fall under a number of different and overlapping jurisdictions and coordination, and cooperation among all levels of government is essential as is centralized storage and management of ungranted state lands information.

B. Administrative framework - management responsibility. Under Chapter 15, Article 2 of Title 28.2 of the Virginia Code, specifically §§ 28.2-1503 and 28.2-1504, the Virginia Marine Resources Commission is designated as the lead agency to manage the ungranted state lands on the Eastern Shore. This management plan will be implemented primarily through a cooperative effort among the Virginia Marine Resources Commission, the Virginia Institute of Marine Science, the Department of Conservation and Recreation, the Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, other participating and affected state agencies, the local governments and residents of Northampton and Accomack Counties, and any other legislatively designated entity.

The following administrative framework identifies roles and responsibilities of Virginia state agencies and the Virginia

Coastal Land Management Advisory Council involved in implementing this management plan.

1. Virginia Marine Resources Commission (VMRC). As specified in § 28.2-1501 B of the Code of Virginia, VMRC shall have the power to promulgate regulations and guidelines necessary to implement the policies in this plan and to protect and preserve the ungranted state lands on the Eastern Shore. Management regulations and guidelines shall be promulgated in accordance with § 28.2-103 of the Code of Virginia and the management issues section of this plan.

The VMRC, in consultation with other affected state agencies, shall have the power to regulate outdoor recreational activities that threaten the natural integrity of the ungranted state lands. Regulation of outdoor recreational activities shall be in accordance with the recreational activities section of this plan and the Administrative Process Act, §§ 9-6:14.11 and 9-6:14.12 of the Code of Virginia.

The VMRC shall have the power to amend this management plan as necessary to protect and preserve the ungranted state lands. Amendments to this plan will be in accordance with the provisions of the amendments section of this plan and the procedures established in Article 2 (§ 28.2-209 et seq.) of Chapter 2 of Title 28.2 of the Code of Virginia.

The VMRC shall periodically review the real property inventories of ungranted state lands on the Eastern Shore and may amend or supplement an inventory as may be appropriate. Any amendment or supplement to an inventory shall be filed with the clerks' offices in Northampton and Accomack counties. The VMRC shall publish a notice of the filing of an amendment or supplement to an inventory according to the statutory requirements for public notice contained in Article 1 (§ 28.2-1500 et seq.) of Chapter 15 of Title 28.2 of the Code of Virginia.

2. Virginia Coastal Land Management Advisory Council (VCLMAC). A Virginia Coastal Land Management Advisory Council shall be established to advise the VMRC on issues relating to the management of ungranted state lands on the Eastern Shore.

The VCLMAC shall be comprised of six residents of Northampton and Accomack Counties. Thev shall represent tourism and commerce, traditional uses of shores of the sea, marsh and meadowlands, and conservation interests. Any private person or entity owning more than 50% of the land area of the barrier islands of the Eastern Shore shall be one of the six members. The residents serving on the VCLMAC will be appointed by the Governor. In making these appointments. the Governor shall consider recommendations submitted by the Boards of Supervisors of Northampton and Accomack Counties.

The VCLMAC shall also include the Director of the Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation or his designee, the Director of the Virginia Department of Game and Inland Fisheries or his designee, and the Commissioner of the Virginia Marine Resources Commission or his designee.

The VCLMAC shall advise the VMRC on issues relating to the management of ungranted shores of the sea, marsh and meadowlands, and shall advise the VMRC on the development of the management plan prepared pursuant to § 28.2-1504 of the Code of Virginia.

The term of office of each appointed member of the VCLMAC shall be for three years. Appointments to fill vacancies shall be made to fill the unexpired term. Members of the VCLMAC shall receive no compensation for their services but shall receive reimbursement for actual expenses.

The VCLMAC shall meet at the call of the Commissioner of the VMRC or at least once per year. The VCLMAC may recommend proposed regulations or guidelines for the ungranted state lands to the VMRC. The VMRC shall have final decision-making authority on the promulgation of proposed regulations and guidelines.

The VCLMAC may recommend to the VMRC resolutions to conflicts between parties on the use of the ungranted state lands. The VMRC shall have the authority to decide cases of conflicting uses. The VCLMAC may recommend amendments to this management plan. The VMRC shall have final decision-making authority on proposed amendments to this plan.

3. Department of Conservation and Recreation (DCR). The Department of Conservation and Recreation's mission is to conserve Virginia's natural and recreational resources. DCR is responsible for the inventory of natural heritage resources, management of natural heritage information, protection of natural areas containing natural heritage resources, and the stewardship of those natural areas. DCR is the Commonwealth's lead agency in efforts to reduce nonpoint source pollution. The department also has experience managing 65,000 acres of parks and natural areas and their visitors and assists Virginia's counties and cities with the development of local parks. DCR operates many public education programs regarding the conservation of Virginia's natural, cultural, and recreational resources. Through these functions and services, DCR can provide information and technical advice to assist with the management of the ungranted state lands.

4. Department of Game and Inland Fisheries (DGIF). The Department of Game and Inland Fisheries (DGIF) exists to provide public, informational and educational services related to game, inland fisheries and boating, and to serve as the agency responsible for the administration and enforcement of all rules and regulations of the Board of Game and Inland Fisheries,

the statutory provisions of Title 29.1 of the Code of Virginia, and related legislative acts. Through these functions and services, DGIF shall provide information and technical advice to assist with the management of the ungranted state lands.

5. Virginia Institute of Marine Science (VIMS). The Virginia Institute of Marine Science shall provide advice and assistance to the VMRC under its general legislative mandate by evaluating wetlands by type and maintaining and updating an inventory of wetlands on the ungranted state lands on the Eastern Shore.

6. Other affected governmental agencies. Other state and federal agencies will retain pre-existing responsibilities for resource management and surveillance and enforcement of statutes and regulations relevant to ungranted state lands and resources associated with them.

C. Management issues. The following section describes significant issues related to the management of the ungranted state lands on the Eastern Shore.

1. Adoption, amendment or repeal of regulations affecting the ungranted state lands. The VMRC shall have the power to promulgate regulations and guidelines necessary to implement the policy of this management plan.

The VMRC is empowered to make regulations or resolve conflicts affecting the ungranted state lands. The VCLMAC shall have the power to recommend proposed regulations to the VMRC. The adoption process shall be carried out in accordance with Article 2 (§ 28.2-2800 et seq.) of Chapter 2 of Title 28.2 of the Code of Virginia.

In addition, in accordance with the provisions of § 28.2-214 of the Code of Virginia, any person may petition the VMRC for the adoption, amendment or repeal of a regulation. When a private party petitions the VMRC for the adoption, amendment or repeal of a regulation, VMRC shall provide a written response to such petition within 180 days from the date the petition was received.

The VMRC shall establish and maintain a list or lists of persons expressing an interest in the adoption, amendment or repeal of regulations. Any person wishing to be placed on the list may do so by writing to the VMRC. The VMRC shall hold at least one public meeting when it considers the adoption, amendment or repeal of a regulation.

2. Recreational activities. Traditional recreational activities on the ungranted state lands shall be allowed to continue as long as they do not disrupt the natural integrity of the resources.

Traditional and current recreational uses of the ungranted state lands include hunting, fishing, fowling, clamming, oystering, crabbing, trapping, camping, picnicking, beachcombing, salvaging (or wrecking), birdwatching, and other nature study. These activities are subject to federal laws and the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Virginia. It is not the intent, objective or desire of this management plan to change existing law unless it is found that current uses threaten the natural integrity of these lands and resources.

The following uses and activities on the ungranted state lands are permitted, if otherwise permitted by federal and state law: conservation, repletion and research activities of the VMRC, VIMS, DGIF, DCR, and other related conservation agencies and educational institutions. Outdoor recreational activities provided that such activities do not (i) impair the natural function of these state lands, or (ii) alter the natural contour of these state lands.

If certain traditional recreational activities are found to threaten the natural integrity of the ungranted state lands, the VMRC shall be empowered through basic laws to regulate the recreational activities to the extent necessary to protect and preserve these lands and their resources. Recommendations for the regulation of recreational activities may come from other state agencies, the VCLMAC, and private parties.

Before initiating such regulations, the VMRC shall consult with other affected state agencies to ensure their knowledge of, and agreement with, the proposed regulation. The VMRC, in deciding to proceed with such regulation, shall follow the procedures for promulgation of regulations set forth in the adoption, amendment or repeal of regulations section of this management plan set out above.

3. Conflicting uses of the state lands. Conflicts may arise between parties on the uses of the ungranted state lands. The VMRC shall have the power to decide cases of conflicting uses.

This management plan is designed to protect the resources of the ungranted state lands and to provide for research, education and compatible traditional activities. When traditional uses conflict with research and education uses or threaten the integrity of the natural resources, every effort will be made to address the conflicts through a hearing process.

The VMRC is empowered to resolve cases of conflicting uses of the ungranted state lands. Parties in conflict shall appeal to the VMRC for resolution of the conflict and determination of appropriate use. The VMRC shall ascertain the fact basis for their decisions on conflicting uses through an informal conference or consultation proceeding as provided for in the Administrative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:11 of the Code of Virginia). In any case where the informal procedures have failed to resolve the case, the VMRC shall hold a formal hearing in accordance with the provisions of § 9-6.14:12 of the Code of Virginia.

Any party aggrieved by a decision or determination of the VMRC shall have the right to the direct review by an

appropriate and timely court action in accordance with the provisions of the Administrative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1 et seq. of the Code of Virginia).

4. Review and amendment of the management plan. As specific issues of management are identified, this management plan may be reviewed and amended.

This management plan was developed to protect the resources on the ungranted state lands while allowing for traditional compatible uses that comply with federal and state laws and regulations and are in keeping with the good ecological health of the entire surrounding ecosystem. Known management issues have been addressed in this section. As other issues arise or are identified which require specific management, it will be necessary to amend the management plan.

Amendments to this management plan may originate with either (i) the VMRC, (ii) the VCLMAC, or (iii) any person through a petition to the VMRC or the VCLMAC to request an amendment to the plan.

Before approving and adopting any amendment to this management plan, the VMRC shall hold at least one public hearing on the amendment after which the lead agency may make appropriate changes or amendments to the management plan.

5. Seasonal restricted areas around bird colonies. Seasonal restrictions will be imposed around active colonies of nesting birds by the appropriate state agency.

Because of the sensitivity of bird nesting colonies, active colonies of nesting birds and 100 meters around these active colonies shall be considered sensitive from April 15 to August 31 of each year. Entrance into these areas for any reason other than approved and permitted research and monitoring activities shall be prohibited during the specified period.

Currently there appears to be little conflict between existing public use patterns and birds nesting on ungranted state lands. As an alternative to posting each colony every summer and then enforcing those posted restricted areas, it is anticipated that an educational approach will be instituted. Through various media and targeting primary user groups, the public will be educated regarding the sensitivity of the nesting birds and encouraged to remain at least 100 meters away from active colonies. Active bird colonies which are close to high use areas may be posted and monitored if this becomes necessary to protect nesting birds.

6. Emergency incidents. Emergency regulations may be imposed as necessary to protect and preserve the ungranted state lands.

In an emergency situation, it may be necessary for the VMRC to issue emergency regulations. For purposes of this plan, "emergency situation" means (i) a situation involving an imminent threat to public peace, health,

safety and welfare, or (ii) a situation involving an imminent threat to the natural resources of these lands.

The VMRC shall have the power to promulgate necessary emergency regulations. The emergency regulation shall be adopted in accordance with the provisions of the agency process for making emergency regulations. Emergency regulations shall remain in effect no longer than 30 days unless a public hearing is held as required in § 28.2-211 after being advertised as prescribed in § 28.2-209 of the Code of Virginia.

The VCLMAC shall have the power to make recommendations for emergency regulations to the VMRC. Private parties shall have the power to recommend emergency regulations to either the VCLMAC, who will forward the request to the VMRC for action, or directly to the VMRC.

7. Fire management. Wildfires should be monitored, and a formal fire management policy may be developed in the future.

Wildfire, whether ignited naturally or by arson, may occasionally affect the ungranted state lands. Prescribed fire, although not indicated for the ungranted state lands at this time, may become a necessary management tool in the future. Wildfires should be monitored and action should be taken to protect neighboring property when necessary. The VMRC may propose regulations regarding campfires if the need arises.

8. Education. An education program will be developed to raise awareness to the sensitive natural resources of the ungranted state lands.

Education initiatives focusing on watermen, anglers, recreational boaters, and tourists should be designed and instituted to raise awareness to the sensitive resources of the ungranted state lands and to encourage visitors to respect requests for protecting these resources. A major thrust of educational endeavors should be information about the sensitivity of nesting birds and persuasion of visitors to honor the recommended seasonal restricted areas.

The media or public education may include posters displayed at public boat landings and other community gathering places (libraries, schools, etc.), brochures or "fact sheets" distributed with salt water fishing licenses, brochures sent to tourists and tour guides, brochures distributed at the parks and refuges of the area, and public service announcements on local radio stations.

9. Visitation management policy. Effects of increased public use on the ungranted state lands will be monitored.

As public use of lands on the Eastern Shore of Virginia increases, the effects of tours and visits to or near the ungranted state lands and their sensitive biological resources should be determined. It may be possible to

Final Regulations

monitor and, if necessary, manage public use through mechanisms established by existing regulations.

10. Nonindigenous species policy. Intentional introductions of nonindigenous plants and animals on the ungranted state lands shall be opposed unless environmental and economic evaluations are conducted and reviewed in order to ensure that risks associated with the introduction are acceptably low. Unintentional introductions of nonindigenous plants and animals on the ungranted state lands shall be prevented. Prevention of unintentional introductions should rely on education and monitoring.

Previous intentional and unintentional introductions should be examined regarding impact to native wildlife and, if necessary, control or eradication measures should be pursued.

Introductions of nonindigenous species may present a threat to native wildlife and native habitats. Introductions into sensitive areas have been known to cause serious ecosystem dysfunction. On the ungranted state lands, nonindigenous wetland plants could significantly alter the wetland habitat and nonindigenous animals could directly or indirectly affect indigenous species.

Under this management plan, intentional introductions should be opposed, unless environmental and economic evaluations ensure that the risks associated with the introduction are low. In accordance with the policy of the Chesapeake Bay Program regarding the participation of other jurisdictions in the introduction of nonindigenous species, first-time introductions should also be evaluated by other jurisdictions within the bay region. Final decision, however, lies with the appropriate Virginia agency (VMRC or DGIF). As the threat of unintentional introductions is as great as intentional ones, efforts to prevent such introductions should be pursued through education and monitoring programs.

The control or eradication of a nonindigenous species may become an important issue. If a species which has been accidentally or intentionally introduced is determined to be a threat to native wildlife or habitat, methods of control or eradication should be evaluated in regard to best protecting the natural environment. Such operations (e.g., trapping, spraying, and/or burning) should be carefully carried out by the VMRC, or other designated agency, in accordance with state and federal laws and regulations.

11. Dredging. Dredging through or next to the ungranted state lands shall be coordinated with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and other dredging authorities.

Dredging through or next to ungranted state lands poses a threat to wetlands habitats, birds and other wildlife. The VMRC shall coordinate with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and other dredging authorities regarding the planning and implementation of dredging projects. The VMRC shall review all proposals and permit applications for dredging and/or placing of dredged material in the immediate vicinity or adjacent to the ungranted state lands. Surveys for dredging and other projects should be conducted in a manner designed to avoid or minimize the disruption of bird nesting colonies.

12. Research and monitoring. A detailed research and monitoring plan for the ungranted state lands should be developed.

A research and monitoring plan which addresses national, state, ecosystem-wide and site-specific research and monitoring needs must be developed. This will require a determination of which national, state, ecosystem-wide, and site-specific priorities are appropriate for consideration on the ungranted state lands. To accomplish this, the VMRC, in coordination with various state agencies, shall solicit input from national and state resource management agencies, affected local governments, and individual citizens.

Under this management plan, the VMRC will work with state and local agencies, interest groups, and local citizens of the Eastern Shore to identify problem areas or concerns associated with the ungranted state lands, and to list and prioritize research and monitoring needs. Some research and monitoring needs have already been identified and should be pursued through appropriate federal and/or state funding. These are:

a. Water quality, geology, habitats and wildlife. In order to improve the management of ungranted state lands, site-specific information on water quality, geology, habitats and wildlife of the ungranted state lands should be researched to more accurately characterize the state lands on both the seaside and bayside of the Eastern Shore. A complete species list for the ungranted state lands should be prepared that includes rare, endangered, threatened or nearly extinct species encountered on these lands.

b. Periodic surveys of the ungranted state lands. The barrier islands and the extensive lagoon system between the barrier islands and the mainland undergo nearly constant change and modification through natural forces such as wave dynamics, storms and sea level rise. The movement and drift of the barrier islands and the changes in the lagoonal system behind the barrier islands should be closely monitored. The VMRC intends to periodically re-survey and re-map the ungranted state lands on the Eastern Shore. Updated maps will be filed with the county clerks of Accomack and Northampton Counties.

c. Colonial nesting bird monitoring. A large interagency effort was recently completed in which all the bird nesting colonies of eastern Northampton and Accomack Counties were surveyed in a single nesting season. Although this study has provided valuable comprehensive information on bird nesting patterns of the area, this one-year study represents only a "snapshot" of bird nesting patterns. Additional comprehensive surveys are needed to identify changes in bird nesting patterns from year to year. Continued comprehensive colonial nesting bird surveys of the seaside marsh islands, including monitoring in the ungranted state lands, is recommended.

d. Archaeological and cultural surveys. It has not been determined that the area of the ungranted state lands contains any material of archaeological importance. The Eastern Shore was inhabited by small Indian tribes when the English arrived in the 17th Century. The early inhabitants were primarily farmers and fishermen. Without further study, it is not known whether early inhabitants left remains or artifacts in the area of the ungranted state lands. Before conducting any ground disturbing activities, the possibility of the existence of archeological remains or artifacts should be considered. A survey of the ungranted state lands should be conducted in an effort to identify any sites of potential archeological significance.

e. Impacts of public use on the ungranted state lands. The impacts of man's influence and the effects of visitation should be monitored to determine the need for limitations and restrictions to protect and conserve the natural resources of the ungranted state lands.

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-129; Filed March 12, 1999, 3:33 p.m.

•

TITLE 12. HEALTH

STATE MENTAL HEALTH, MENTAL RETARDATION AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES BOARD

Withdrawal

<u>Title of Regulation:</u> 12 VAC 35-210-10 et seq. Certification of the Qualification of Providers of Behavior Consultation Services.

The Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services has withdrawn the final regulations entitled, "12 VAC 35-210-10 et seq., Certification of the Qualification of Providers of Behavior Consultation Services." These regulations were scheduled to become effective April 15, 1999. The final regulations appeared in 15:13 VA.R. 1933-1937 March 15, 1999.

VA.R. Doc. No. R98-39; Filed April 1, 1999, 10:12 a.m.

TITLE 14. INSURANCE

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

<u>REGISTRAR'S NOTICE:</u> The State Corporation Commission is exempt from the Administrative Process Act in accordance with § 9-6.14:4.1 A 2 of the Code of Virginia, which exempts courts, any agency of the Supreme Court, and any agency which by the Constitution is expressly granted any of the powers of a court of record.

Title of Regulations: 14 VAC 5-170-10 et seq. Rules Minimum Standards for Medicare Governing Supplement Policies (amending 14 VAC 5-170-20. 14 VAC 5-170-30, 14 VAC 5-170-40, 14 VAC 5-170-50, 14 VAC 5-170-60. 14 VAC 5-170-70. 14 VAC 5-170-80. 14 VAC 5-170-90, 14 VAC 5-170-100, 14 VAC 5-170-110, 14 VAC 5-170-120, 14 VAC 5-170-130, 14 VAC 5-170-140, 14 VAC 5-170-150, 14 VAC 5-170-160, 14 VAC 5-170-170, 14 VAC 5-170-180, Appendix A, Appendix B, and Appendix C; adding 14 VAC 5-170-105).

Statutory Authority: §§ 12.1-13 and 38.2-223 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: April 26, 1999.

Summary:

The amendments respond to the federal Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (Public Law 105-33, August 5, 1997), which establishes a new Part C in Medicare (Medicare+Choice) and creates additional standards for Medicare supplement insurance policies. Changes to Medicare supplement insurance policies include quaranteed issue without preexisting conditions for continuously covered individuals and limitation on imposition of preexisting condition exclusion during initial open enrollment period. Two new high deductible Medicare supplement policies (High Deductible Plan F and High Deductible Plan J) have also been added to the 10 standardized Medicare supplement plans. The amended regulation also includes changes and additions to the disclosure statements.

<u>Agency Contact:</u> Copies of the regulation may be obtained from Ann Colley, State Corporation Commission, Bureau of Insurance, P.O. Box 1197, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 371-9813.

AT RICHMOND, March 12, 1999

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, ex rel.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

CASE NO. INS980193

Ex Parte: In the matter of adopting revised Rules Governing Minimum Standards for Medicare Supplement Policies

Volume 15, Issue 15

Final Regulations

ORDER ADOPTING REGULATION

WHEREAS, by order entered herein January 26, 1999, all interested persons were ordered to take notice that the Commission would enter an order subsequent to February 25, 1999, adopting a revised regulation proposed by the Bureau of Insurance unless on or before February 25, 1999, any person objecting to the adoption of the regulation filed a request for a hearing with the Clerk of the Commission;

WHEREAS, as of the date of this order, no request for a hearing has been filed with the Clerk of the Commission;

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the regulation entitled "Rules Governing Minimum Standards for Medicare Supplement Policies," which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, should be, and it is hereby, ADOPTED to be effective April 26, 1999.

AN ATTESTED COPY hereof shall be sent by the Clerk of the Commission to the Bureau of Insurance in care of Deputy Commissioner Gerald A. Milsky, who forthwith shall give further notice of the adoption of the regulation by mailing a copy of this order, together with a copy of the attached regulation, to all insurers, health services plans, and health maintenance organizations licensed to write medicare supplement insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

In accordance with § 9-6.14:22 of the Code of Virginia, the Registrar has determined that the changes to the abovereferenced regulation adopted by the State Corporation Commission can be clearly and concisely explained and, therefore, the full text of the adopted regulation is not being published. The full text of the proposed regulation was published in 15:11 VA.R. 1580-1638 February 15, 1999, and the changes to the proposed regulation are set out below:

Page 1589, column 1, 14 VAC 5-170-90 C, line 5 after "USC § 1395ss(5)) if the" change "commission" to "State Corporation Commission"

Page 1594, column 2, 14 VAC 5-170-130 C 3, line 3 after the first occurrence of "Select policy" strike the comma

Page 1626, column 1, 14 VAC 5-170-150 D 1, line 4 after "supplement policy" insert a comma

Page 1629, column 1, Appendix A, subdivision 3, line 2 change "Current Year k Past Year's" to "Current Year + Past Year's"

Page 1629, column 1, Appendix A, subdivision 10, line 6 change "10,000 K" to "10,000 +"

Page 1629, column 2, Appendix A, subdivision 10, line 8 change "2,500 4,999" to "2,500-4,999"

Page 1629, column 2, Appendix A, subdivision 11, line 3 change "Ratio 2 k" to "Ratio 2 +"

Page 1632, column 2, Appendix C, in the block beginning "IMPORTANT NOTICE..." change "BENEFIT" to "BENEFITS"

VA.R. Doc. No. R99-88; Filed March 16, 1999, 12:54 p.m.

GENERAL NOTICES/ERRATA

STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

Proposed Consent Special Order Stillwater, Inc.

The State Water Control Board proposes to enter into a consent special order with Stillwater, Inc. to address anticipated violations of the State Water Control Law and regulations at Stillwater's Goshen facility. Stillwater is subject to a No-Discharge Certificate issued by the board authorizing the company to discharge its wastewater into a nondischarging lagoon. All No-Discharge Certificates in Virginia will expire by regulation on July 1, 1999. Stillwater has been unable to convert its certificate to a VPA permit because the cost of upgrading its lagoon is prohibitive.

Rockbridge County and the Public Service Authority are working with Stillwater to construct a regional wastewater treatment facility which will serve Stillwater, as well as other neighboring businesses and residents. The consent order will allow Stillwater to continue to operate its existing lagoon under the terms of its certificate for another three years and will require connection to the new facility as soon as construction is complete.

The board will receive written comments relating to the proposed consent special order until May 12, 1999. Comments should be addressed to Elizabeth V. Scott, Department of Environmental Quality, Post Office Box 1129, Harrisonburg, Virginia 22801, and should refer to the consent special order.

The proposed order may be examined at the Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Road, Harrisonburg, Virginia 22801. A copy of the order may be obtained in person or by mail from this office.

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

Notice to State Agencies

Mailing Address: Virginia Code Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219. You may FAX in your notice; however, we ask that you FAX two copies and do not follow up with a mailed copy. Our FAX number is: (804) 692-0625.

Forms for Filing Material for Publication in *The Virginia Register of Regulations*

All agencies are required to use the appropriate forms when furnishing material for publication in *The Virginia Register of Regulations*. The forms may be obtained from: Virginia Code Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591.

Internet: Forms and other Virginia Register resources may be printed or downloaded from the Virginia Register web

page:

http://legis.state.va.us/codecomm/register/regindex.htm

FORMS:

NOTICE of INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION - RR01 NOTICE of COMMENT PERIOD - RR02 PROPOSED (Transmittal Sheet) - RR03 FINAL (Transmittal Sheet) - RR04 EMERGENCY (Transmittal Sheet) - RR05 NOTICE of MEETING - RR06 AGENCY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE OBJECTIONS - RR08

CALENDAR OF EVENTS

Symbol Key

† Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register
 Location accessible to handicapped
 Teletype (TTY)/Voice Designation

NOTICE

Only those meetings which are filed with the Registrar of Regulations by the filing deadline noted at the beginning of this publication are listed. Since some meetings are called on short notice, please be aware that this listing of meetings may be incomplete. Also, all meetings are subject to cancellation and the *Virginia Register* deadline may preclude a notice of such cancellation.

For additional information on open meetings and public hearings held by the standing committees of the legislature during the interim, please call Legislative Information at (804) 698-1500 or Senate Information and Constituent Services at (804) 698-7410 or (804) 698-7419/TTY², or visit the General Assembly web site's Legislative Information System (http://leg1.state.va.us/lis.htm) and select "Meetings."

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

EXECUTIVE

BOARD FOR ACCOUNTANCY

April 26, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 5W, Richmond, Virginia.

The board will conduct routine business. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8505, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

COMMONWEALTH COUNCIL ON AGING

† April 29, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Department for the Aging, 1600 Forest Avenue, Suite 102, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to elect officers and establish bylaws, and to present an overview of the Department of Social Services and the Department of Medical Assistance Services.

Contact: Ann Y. McGee, Ed.D., Commissioner, Department for the Aging, 1600 Forest Ave., Suite 102, Richmond, VA 23229, telephone (804) 662-9333, FAX (804) 662-7052, toll-free 1-800-552-3402, or (804) 662-9333/TTY **a**

BOARD OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

May 12, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, 2nd Floor Board Room, Richmond, Virginia. A regular meeting to discuss Virginia agriculture and consumer protection. The board will entertain public comment at the conclusion of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who needs any accommodation in order to participate at the meeting should contact Roy E. Seward at least five days before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

Contact: Roy E. Seward, Secretary to the Board, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 1100 Bank St., Room 211, P.O. Box 1163, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 786-3535 or FAX (804) 371-7679.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Virginia Horse Industry Board

April 12, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Virginia Cooperative Extension, 168 Spotnap Road, Lower Level Meeting Room, Charlottesville, Virginia

A meeting to review grant proposals submitted for the 1999-2000 fiscal year. The board will entertain public comments at the conclusion of all other business for a period not to exceed 30 minutes. Any person who needs any special accommodations in order to participate at the meeting should contact Andrea S. Heid at least five days before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

Contact: Andrea S. Heid, Equine Marketing Specialist/Program Manager, Virginia Horse Industry Board, Washington Bldg., 1100 Bank St., Suite 1004, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-5842 or FAX (804) 371-7786.

Pesticide Control Board

April 15, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street, Board Room, Room 204, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting. Portions of the meeting may be held in closed session pursuant to § 2.1-344 of the Code of Virginia. The public will have an opportunity to comment on any matter not on the board's agenda beginning at 9 a.m. Any person who needs any accommodations in order to participate at the meeting should contact Dr. Marvin A. Lawson at least seven days before the meeting date so that suitable arrangements can be made.

Contact: Dr. Marvin A. Lawson, Program Manager, Office of Pesticide Services, Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, 1100 Bank St., Room 401, P.O. Box 1163, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 371-6558 or toll-free 1-800-552-9963.

STATE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

May 11, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room C, Richmond, Virginia.

A quarterly meeting.

Contact: Cindy M. Berndt, Regulatory Coordinator, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4378.

BOARD FOR ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, LAND SURVEYORS, CERTIFIED INTERIOR DESIGNERS AND LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

† April 28, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Architect Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

† May 5, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Professional Engineer Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

† May 12, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Land Surveyor Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

† May 19, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Landscape Architect Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

† May 26, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Certified Interior Designer Section to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

VIRGINIA BOARD FOR ASBESTOS AND LEAD

May 13, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 5W, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct routine business. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-2176, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY **2**

AUCTIONEERS BOARD

April 13, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

VIRGINIA AVIATION BOARD

† April 20, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting Richmond Marriott, 500 East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A workshop for the board. No formal actions will be taken. Individuals with disabilities should contact Margaret Fuller at least 10 days prior to the meeting if assistance is needed.

Contact: Margaret Fuller, Department of Aviation, 5702 Gulfstream Road, Richmond International Airport, VA 23250-2422, telephone (804) 236-3632 or (804) 236-3624/TTY

† April 21, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Richmond Marriott, 500 East Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular bimonthly meeting of the board. Applications for state funding will be presented to the board and other matters of the Virginia aviation community will be discussed. Individuals with disabilities should contact Margaret Fuller at least 10 days prior to the meeting if assistance is needed.

Contact: Margaret Fuller, Department of Aviation, 5702 Gulfstream Road, Richmond International Airport, VA 23250-2422, telephone (804) 236-3632 or (804) 236-3624/TTY

BOARD FOR BARBERS

April 12, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss regulatory review and other matters requiring board action, including disciplinary cases. All meetings are subject to cancellation and the meeting time is subject to change. Contact the board at least three days prior to the meeting for possible changes. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Nancy Taylor Feldman, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-2474 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

BOARD FOR BRANCH PILOTS

† May 3, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Virginia Port Authority, 600 World Trade Center, Norfolk, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The board will conduct examinations.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY **2**

† May 4, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Port Authority, 600 World Trade Center, Norfolk, Virginia 🗟 (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to conduct board business. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The board fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Mark N. Courtney, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8514, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

STATE BUILDING CODE TECHNICAL REVIEW BOARD

April 16, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

The Jackson Center, 501 North 2nd Street, 1st Floor Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the board to hear administrative appeals concerning building and fire codes and other regulations of the department. The board issues interpretations and formalizes recommendations to the Board of Housing and Community Development concerning future changes to the regulations.

Contact: Vernon W. Hodge, Building Code Supervisor, State Building Code Office, Department of Housing and Community Development, 501 N. 2nd St., Richmond, VA 23219-1321, telephone (804) 371-7170 or (804) 371-7089/TTY ☎

CHESAPEAKE BAY LOCAL ASSISTANCE BOARD

April 12, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Theater Row Building, 730 East Broad Street, Conference Room 3, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A general business meeting to review local Chesapeake Bay Preservation Area programs and the FY 2000 Local Government Grant Awards and to hear the status of proposed regulatory amendments.

Contact: Carolyn J. Elliott, Executive Secretary, Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department, 805 E. Broad St., Suite 701, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-7505, FAX (804) 225-3447 or toll-free (800) 243-7229/TTY ☎

STATE BOARD FOR COMMUNITY COLLEGES

† May 12, 1999 - 2:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Western Community College, 3095 Colonial Avenue, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Meetings of the Academic and Student Affairs Committee, the Budget and Finance Committee, and the Audit Committee.

Contact: Dr. Joy S. Graham, Assistant Chancellor for Public Affairs, Virginia Community College System, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 15th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2126, FAX (804) 371-0085, or (804) 371-8504/TTY ☎

† May 12, 1999 - 3:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Western Community College, 3095 Colonial Avenue, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Meetings of the Facilities Committee and the Personnel Committee.

Contact: Dr. Joy S. Graham, Assistant Chancellor for Public Affairs, Virginia Community College System, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 15th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2126, FAX (804) 371-0085, or (804) 371-8504/TTY ☎

† May 13, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Western Community College, 3095 Colonial Avenue, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular meeting of the board.

Contact: Dr. Joy S. Graham, Assistant Chancellor for Public Affairs, Virginia Community College System, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., 15th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2126, FAX (804) 371-0085, or (804) 371-8504/TTY **2**

COMPENSATION BOARD

April 15, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, Senate Room A, Richmond, Virginia.

April 16, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Salem City Council Chambers, 114 North Broad Street, Salem, Virginia.

FY 2000 budget hearings.

Contact: Cindy Waddell, Administrative Assistant, Compensation Board, 202 N. 9th St., P.O. Box 710, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-0786, FAX (804) 371-0235 or (804) 786-0786/TTY ☎

April 22, 1999 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Ninth Street Office Building, 202 North 9th Street, 10th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A monthly board meeting.

Contact: Cindy Waddell, Administrative Assistant, Compensation Board, 202 N. 9th St., P.O. Box 710, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-0786, FAX (804) 371-0235 or (804) 786-0786/TTY ☎

COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES FOR AT-RISK YOUTH AND THEIR FAMILIES

State Executive Council

April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting May 21, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting June 25, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Theater Row Building, 730 East Broad Street, Lower Level, Training Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting. The council provides for interagency programmatic and fiscal policies, oversees the administration of funds appropriated under the Comprehensive Services Act, and advises the Governor.

Contact: Alan G. Saunders, Director, State Executive Council, 1604 Santa Rosa Road, Suite 137, Richmond, VA 23229, telephone (804) 662-9815 or FAX (804) 662-9831.

Volume 15, Issue 15

BOARD OF CONSERVATION AND RECREATION

April 26, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting First Landing/Seashore State Park, 2500 Shore Drive, Visitor's Center, Virginia Beach, Virginia.

A regular business meeting.

Contact: Leon E. App, Acting Deputy Director, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 302, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6124, FAX (804) 786-6141 or (804) 786-2121/TTY

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND RECREATION

Chippokes Plantation Farm Foundation

† April 21, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting
† June 28, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. - Open Meeting
Chippokes Plantation State Park, Mansion, 695 Chippokes
Park Road, Conference Room, Surry, Virginia.

A general business meeting.

Contact: Katherine R. Wright, Executive Secretary, Department of Conservation and Recreation, 203 Governor St., Suite 326, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-7950 or FAX (804) 371-8500.

Rappahannock Scenic River Advisory Board

† April 21, 1999 - 7 p.m. -- Open Meeting Culpeper Office Building, 302 North Main Street, Culpeper, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss river issues. Public comments will be taken following regular business.

Contact: Richard G. Gibbons, Environmental Program Planner, Department of Conservation and Recreation, Division of Planning and Recreation Resources, 203 Governor St., Suite 326, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4132, FAX (804) 371-7899 or (804) 786-2121/TTY

BOARD OF CORRECTIONS

April 13, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia

A meeting of the Correctional Services Committee to discuss correctional services matters which may be presented to the full board.

Contact: Barbara Fellows, Administrative Assistant to the Board, Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr.,

Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3235 or FAX (804) 674-3130.

April 14, 1999 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Administration Committee to discuss administration matters which may be presented to the full board.

Contact: Barbara Fellows, Administrative Assistant to the Board, Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr., Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3235 or FAX (804) 674-3130.

April 14, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Board of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Drive, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the full board. Public comment will be received.

Contact: Barbara Fellows, Administrative Assistant to the Board, Department of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr., Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (804) 674-3235 or FAX (804) 674-3130.

BOARD FOR COSMETOLOGY

April 19, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss regulatory review, comments from informational proceedings, and other matters requiring board action, including disciplinary cases. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting. Please call the board for possible changes. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Nancy Taylor Feldman, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-2474 or (804) 367-9753/TTY

BOARD OF DENTISTRY

† April 16, 1999 - 1:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Motor Vehicles, 6306 Grovedale Drive, Franconia Customer Service Center, Alexandria, Virginia.

A Special Conference Committee will meet to hear disciplinary cases. This is a public meeting; however, no public comment will be taken.

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9906 or (804) 662-7197/TTY 🖀

† April 29, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A panel of the board will conduct formal administrative hearings in the matter of disciplinary cases. This is a public meeting; however, no public comment will be taken.

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9906 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Legislative/Regulatory Committee to address (i) finalizing emergency regulations regarding applications and renewal fees for restricted volunteer licenses for dentists and dental hygienists, (ii) petition for rulemaking regarding dental hygiene services in nursing homes, (iii) § 54.1-2718 of the Code of Virginia providing advertising, and (iv) the use of Class II lasers. Public comment will be taken at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9906 or (804) 662-7197/TTY

† April 30, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to receive committee reports and review consent orders, minutes and general requests made to the board. Public comment will be taken at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Marcia J. Miller, Executive Director, Board of Dentistry, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9906 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

VIRGINIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP

April 12, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Library of Virginia, 800 East Broad Street, Meeting Room A, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Search Committee to discuss the Executive Director's position.

Contact: Jean Powers, Executive Secretary to the Secretary of Commerce and Trade, Virginia Economic Development Partnership, 202 N. 9th St., Suite 723, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-7831 or FAX (804) 371-0250.

† April 27, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting

Virginia Economic Development Partnership, 901 East Byrd Street, West Tower, 19th Floor, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Board of Directors to discuss issues relating to economic development in Virginia.

Contact: Pandy Brazeau, Administrative Assistant, Virginia Economic Development Partnership, 901 E. Byrd St., P.O. Box 798, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 371-8106 or FAX (804) 371-8112.

STATE EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD

May 7, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Embassy Suites Hotel, 2925 Emerywood Parkway, Richmond, Virginia.

A quarterly meeting.

Contact: Irene Hamilton, Executive Secretary Senior, Office of Emergency Medical Services, Department of Health, 1583 E. Parham Rd., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 371-3500, FAX (804) 371-3543 or toll-free 1-800-523-6019.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

April 12, 1999 - 7 p.m. -- Public Hearing

John Tyler Community College, Chester Campus, 13101 Jefferson Davis Highway, Bird Hall, Room B-124, Chester, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on a draft permit for the Shoosmith Brothers Sanitary Landfill located on Lewis Road, approximately three miles northwest of the Town of Chester and State Route 10 in Chesterfield County.

Contact: Paul Farrell, Department of Environmental Quality, Office of Waste Permitting, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4214.

April 13, 1999 - 7 p.m. -- Public Hearing

Pulaski County Courthouse, 45 3rd Street, N.W., Circuit Courtroom, Pulaski, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on an air permit application from Volvo Trucks North America, Inc., to increase the production and painting of trucks to approximately 250 per day with an increase in air emission rates.

Contact: Steven Dietrich, Department of Environmental Quality, West Central Regional Office, 3019 Peters Creek Rd., Roanoke, VA 24019, telephone (540) 562-6762.

† April 16, 1999 - 7 p.m. – Public Hearing

First Union Bank, Main and Bridge Streets, Public Meeting Room, Bedford, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on an application from Sam Moore Furniture Industries, Inc., to modify and operate a wooden chair manufacturing facility in Bedford. The modification will increase the potential volatile organic compound emissions from the finishing operation.

Contact: Allen Armistead, Department of Environmental Quality, Lynchburg Satellite Office, 7705 Timberlake Rd., Lynchburg, VA 24502, telephone (9804) 582-5120.

Virginia Ground Water Protection Steering Committee

† May 18, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss ground water protection issues. Meeting minutes and agenda may be obtained from Mary Ann Massie.

Contact: Mary Ann Massie, Environmental Program Planner, Department of Environmental Quality, P. O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 698-4042.

Virginia Pollution Prevention Advisory Committee

† May 26, 1999 - 10:30 a.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Environmental Quality, Piedmont Regional Office, 4949-A Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss the voluntary pollution prevention program.

Contact: Sharon K. Baxter, Pollution Prevention Manager, Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23221, telephone (804) 698-4344 or toll-free 1-800-592-5482.

BOARD OF FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND EMBALMERS

April 14, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Room 2, Richmond, Virginia

A general meeting of the board. Following the meeting the board will host a meeting with District II of the National Funeral Directors Association. There will be a 15-minute public comment period.

Contact: Cheri Emma-Leigh, Administrative Staff Assistant, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9907 or FAX (804) 662-9523.

BOARD OF GAME AND INLAND FISHERIES

May 6, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

May 7, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, 4000 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The board will meet to consider for final adoption wildlife regulations to be effective from July 1999 through June 2001. Under board procedures, regulatory actions occur over two sequential board meetings. At the May 6, 1999, meeting, the board will determine whether the amendments to regulations for game wildlife, hunting and trapping, including the length of seasons, bag limits and methods of take for game, which were proposed at its March 4, 1999, board meeting, will be adopted as final regulations. The board will solicit comments from the public during the public hearing portion of the meeting on May 6, at which time any interested citizen present shall be heard. The board reserves the right to adopt final amendments which may be more liberal than, or more stringent than, the regulations currently in effect or the regulation amendments proposed at the March 4, 1999, board meeting, as necessary for the proper management of wildlife resources.

Additional information on this review of regulations, including a list of the specific regulations subject to review and additional details on opportunities for public involvement, was published in a separate announcement in the "General Notices" section of the February 15, 1999 Virginia Register.

The board may discuss general and administrative issues. The board may hold an executive session before the public session begins on May 6. If the board completes its agenda on May 6, it may not convene on May 7, the second of the scheduled two days of the meeting. The board may elect to hold a dinner Wednesday evening, May 5, at a location and time to be determined.

Contact: Phil Smith, Policy Analyst, Department of Game and Inland Fisheries, 4010 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-1000 or FAX (804) 367-2311.

HAMMOND COMMISSION

† April 29, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting Crystal Towers Building, 145 West Campbell Avenue, Roanoke, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting on substance abuse and addiction services. Public comment will be received at 10 a.m. Following the meeting commission members will visit some of the programs operating in Roanoke.

Contact: Fran M. Sadler, Administrative Assistant, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1108 or FAX (804) 692-1123.

STATE BOARD OF HEALTH

April 29, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Carilion New River Valley Medical Center, 2900 Tyler Road,

Christiansburg, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A work session of the board.

Contact: Paul W. Matthias, Staff to the Board, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main St., Room 227, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-2909 or FAX (804) 786-4616.

April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Carilion New River Valley Medical Center, 2900 Tyler Road, Christiansburg, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A business meeting.

Contact: Paul W. Matthias, Staff to the Board, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main St., Room 227, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-2909 or FAX (804) 786-4616.

BOARD OF HEALTH PROFESSIONS

† April 19, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Executive Committee to review the agency's strategic plan and budget projections. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Carol Stamey, Administrative Assistant, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9910, FAX (804) 662-7098 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† April 19, 1999 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Ad Hoc Committee on Establishing Independent Boards will review workplans to study the need for an independent board to regulate chiropractors and the need for an independent board to regulate physical therapists and physical therapy assistants. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Carol Stamey, Administrative Assistant, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9910, FAX (804) 662-7098 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† April 19, 1999 - 2:30 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request) A meeting of the Enforcement Committee to discuss study findings and develop recommendations for the full board regarding the disciplinary processes employed by respective health regulatory boards within the Department of Health Professions. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Carol Stamey, Administrative Assistant, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9910, FAX (804) 662-7098 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† April 20, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Regulatory Research Committee to discuss amendments to the regulations governing dietitians and nutritionists. Fifteen minutes will be allotted at the beginning of the meeting to receive public comment on the regulation and other brief public comment will be received thereafter. The committee will also be developing recommendations regarding the board's potential role in mediation of respective workplans for its study into the need to regulate clinical laboratory personnel and the need to regulate speech language pathology assistants.

Contact: Carol Stamey, Administrative Assistant, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9910, FAX (804) 662-7098 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† April 20, 1999 - 10:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Education Committee to discuss plans for the board's issues forum for the fall. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Carol Stamey, Administrative Assistant, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9910, FAX (804) 662-7098 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† April 20, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the full board to be informed of credentials requirements for two professional nutritionist groups to guide possible amendments to the Regulations Governing Dietitians and Nutritionists (18 VAC 75-30-10). The board will reconsider proposed amendments to Regulations Governing Practitioner Self-Referral (18 VAC 75-20-10 et seq.). The board will also receive reports from its Enforcement, Education, and Regulatory Research Committees, and the new Ad Hoc Committee on Establishing Independent Boards. Brief public

comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Carol Stamey, Administrative Assistant, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9910, FAX (804) 662-7098 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† April 20, 1999 - 2 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Practitioner Self-Referral Committee to consider requests for advisory opinions concerning exemptions to the Practitioner Self-Referral Act, as necessary. This is a public meeting; however, public comment will not be received.

Contact: Carol Stamey, Administrative Assistant, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9910, FAX (804) 662-7098 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

BOARD FOR HEARING AID SPECIALISTS

May 11, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss regulatory review and other matters requiring board action, including disciplinary cases. All meetings are subject to cancellation. Time of meeting is subject to change. Call the board's office at least 24 hours in advance. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Nancy Taylor Feldman, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-2474 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

HOPEWELL INDUSTRIAL SAFETY COUNCIL

† May 4, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

† June 1, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

Hopewell Community Center, 100 West City Point Road, Hopewell, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Local Emergency Preparedness Committee meeting on emergency preparedness as required by SARA Title III.

Contact: Robert Brown, Emergency Services Coordinator, 300 N. Main St., Hopewell, VA 23860, telephone (804) 541-2298.

VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

† April 20, 1999 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Housing Development Authority, 601 South Belvidere Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners to (i) review and, if appropriate, approve the minutes from the prior monthly meeting; (ii) consider for approval and ratification mortgage loan commitments under the authority's various programs; (iii) consider and, if appropriate, approve the repeal of its rules and regulations for energy loans, rules and regulations for Virginia homesteading program, and rules and regulations for HUD-insured home equity conversion mortgage loans; (iv) review the authority's operations for the prior month; and (v) consider such other matters and take such other actions as it may deem appropriate. Various committees of the board may also meet before or after the regular meeting and consider matters within their purview. The planned agenda of the meeting will be available at the offices of the authority one week prior to the date of the meeting.

Contact: J. Judson McKellar, Jr., General Counsel, Virginia Housing Development Authority, 601 S. Belvidere Street, Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 343-5540, FAX (804) 783-6701, toll-free 1-800-968-7837, or (804) 783-6705/TTY

COUNCIL ON INFORMATION MANAGEMENT

† May 14, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Location to be announced.

The council's final meeting.

Contact: Linda Hening, Administrative Staff Specialist, Council on Information Management, Washington Bldg., 110 S. 7th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-3622.

STATEWIDE INDEPENDENT LIVING COUNCIL

April 14, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting Richmond Hyatt House, 6624 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly meeting.

Contact: Jim Rothrock, Statewide Independent Living Council Staff, 1802 Marriott Rd., Richmond, VA 23229, telephone (804) 673-0119, FAX (804) 282-7112 or e-mail jarothrock@aol.com.

VIRGINIA ADVISORY COMMISSION ON INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

† April 12, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, 5th Floor West Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Visual Quality Committee with principal focus on reviewing a draft of the final report of the visual quality study.

Contact: Adele MacLean, Secretary, Virginia Advisory Commission on Intergovernmental Relations, Pocahontas Bldg., 900 E. Main St., Suite 103, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6508, FAX (804) 371-7999 or (804) 828-1120/TTY ☎

April 21, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, Speaker's Conference Room, 6th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the advisory commission to (i) receive a legislative update, (ii) consider a draft of the visual quality study's final report and discuss steps for implementing the report's recommendations, and (iii) consider a draft of the State Song Subcommittee's interim report and to discuss the advisability of establishing a commission for other official designations.

Contact: Adele MacLean, Secretary, Virginia Advisory Commission on Intergovernmental Relations, Pocahontas Bldg., 900 E. Main St., Suite 103, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6508, FAX (804) 371-7999 or (804) 786-1860/TTY ☎

GOVERNOR'S JOB TRAINING COORDINATING COUNCIL

April 20, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

701 East Franklin Street, 10th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular quarterly business meeting. Topics related to workforce development will be discussed.

Contact: Gail P. Robinson, Senior Policy Analyst, Governor's Employment and Training Department, 701 E. Franklin St., 10th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-2511, FAX (804) 786-2310 or (804) 786-2315/TTY

STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

April 14, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting 700 Centre, 700 East Franklin Street, Richmond, Virginia.

† May 12, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Northern Virginia Detention Home, 200 South Whiting Street, Alexandria, Virginia.

The Secure Program Committee and the Nonsecure Program Committee will meet at 9 a.m. The full board will meet at 10 a.m. to act on matters relating to the certification of residential and nonresidential juvenile justice programs and to consider such other matters as may come before the board.

Contact: Donald R. Carignan, Policy Analyst Senior, Department of Juvenile Justice, 700 E. Franklin St., P.O. Box 1110, Richmond, VA 23218-1110, telephone (804) 371-0743 or FAX (804) 371-0773.

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Safety and Health Codes Board

† May 17, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room C, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Safety and Health Codes Board to discuss:

1. 16 VAC 25-90-1910.178, Powered Industrial Truck (PITS) Operator Training, Final Rule, Parts 1910, 1915, 1917, 1918 and 1926; and

2. 16 VAC 25-90-1910.146, Permit-Required Confined Spaces, Final Rule, and Correction

Contact: Regina P. Cobb, Agency Management Analyst Senior, Department of Labor and Industry, Powers-Taylor Bldg., 13 S. 13th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-0610, FAX (804) 786-8418 or (804) 786-2376.

LONGWOOD COLLEGE

† April 22, 1999 - 3 p.m. -- Open Meeting Longwood College, Lancaster Building, Room 256, Farmville, Virginia.

A meeting of the Executive Committee to conduct routine business followed by a dinner meeting at Longwood House.

Contact: Patricia P. Cormier, President, Longwood College, 201 High St., Farmville, VA 23909, telephone (804) 395-2004 or FAX (804) 395-2821.

† April 23, 1999 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting Longwood College, Lankford Building, Amelia Room, Farmville, Virginia.

The following committees of the Board of Visitors will conduct routine business meetings:

Finance Committee - 8:30 a.m. Academic Affairs Committee - 1 p.m. Facilities and Services Committee - 3 p.m. Student Affairs Committee - 4:15 p.m.

Contact: Patricia P. Cormier, President, Longwood College, 201 High St., Farmville, VA 23909, telephone (804) 395-2004 or FAX (804) 395-2821.

† April 24, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Longwood College, Lancaster Building, Room 215, Farmville, Virginia.

A meeting of the Board of Visitors to conduct routine business.

Contact: Patricia P. Cormier, President, Longwood College, 201 High St., Farmville, VA 23909, telephone (804) 395-2004 or FAX (804) 395-2821.

VIRGINIA MANUFACTURED HOUSING BOARD

† May 20, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Housing and Community Development, 501 North 2nd Street, The Jackson Center, 2nd Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular monthly meeting.

Contact: Curtis L. McIver, Associate Director, Department of Housing and Community Development, Manufactured Housing Office, The Jackson Center, 501 N. 2nd St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-7160 or (804) 371-7089/TTY ☎

MARINE RESOURCES COMMISSION

April 27, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

May 25, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

June 22, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Marine Resources Commission, 2600 Washington Avenue, Room 403, Newport News, Virginia. **(Interpreter for the** deaf provided upon request)

The commission will hear and decide the following marine environmental matters at 9:30 a.m.: permit applications for projects in wetlands, bottom lands, coastal primary sand dunes and beaches; appeals of local wetland board decisions; and policy and regulatory issues. The commission will hear and decide the following fishery management items at approximately noon: regulatory proposals; fishery management plans; fishery conservation issues; licensing; and shellfish leasing. Meetings are open to the public. Testimony will be taken under oath from parties addressing agenda items on permits and licensing. Public comments will be taken on resource matters, regulatory issues and items scheduled for public hearing.

Contact: LaVerne Lewis, Secretary to the Commission, Marine Resources Commission, P.O. Box 756, Newport News, VA 23607-0756, telephone (757) 247-2261, toll-free 1-800-541-4646 or (757) 247-2292/TTY ☎

BOARD OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

May 11, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to discuss medical assistance services policy and to take action on issues pertinent to the board.

Contact: Leah D. Hamaker, Board Liaison, Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4626 or FAX (804) 371-4981.

BOARD OF MEDICINE

† May 5, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Committee on Acupuncturists will discuss regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-110-10 et seq., Licensed Acupuncturists, and such other issues which may be presented. The committee will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† May 5, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Committee on Radiologic Technologists will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding 18 VAC 85-101-10 et seq., Regulations Governing the Licensure of Radiologic Technologists and Radiologic Technologists-Limited, and such other issues which may be presented. The advisory committee will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† May 6, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Board on Occupational Therapy will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding the regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-80-10 et seq., Regulations for Licensure of Occupational Therapists, and such other issues which may be

presented. The advisory board will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† May 6, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Board on Respiratory Care will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding the regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-40-10 et seq., Regulations Governing the Practice of Respiratory Care Practitioners, and such other issues which may be presented.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY

† May 7, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Board on Physical Therapy will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding the regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-31-10 et seq., Regulations Governing the Practice of Physical Therapy, and such other issues which may be presented. The advisory board will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† May 7, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

The Advisory Committee on Physician Assistants will review public comments and make recommendations to the board regarding the regulatory review of 18 VAC 85-50-10 et seq., Regulations Governing the Practice of Physician Assistants, and such other issues which may be presented. The committee will entertain public comments during the first 15 minutes on agenda items.

Contact: Warren W. Koontz, M.D., Executive Director, Board of Medicine, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9960, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

Informal Conference Committee

April 15, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Roanoke Airport Marriott, 2801 Hershberger Road, Roanoke, Virginia.

April 28, 1999 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia.

April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Williamsburg Marriott, 50 Kingsmill Road, Williamsburg, Virginia.

† May 6, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Sheraton Inn, 2801 Plank Road, Fredericksburg, Virginia.

A meeting to inquire into allegations that certain practitioners may have violated laws and regulations governing the practice of medicine and other healing arts in Virginia. The committee will meet in open and closed sessions pursuant to § 2.1-344 A 7 and A 15 of the Code of Virginia. Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Karen W. Perrine, Deputy Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 786-7693, FAX (804) 662-9517 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

STATE MENTAL HEALTH, MENTAL RETARDATION AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES BOARD

May 14, 1999 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the State Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services Board intends to adopt regulations entitled: **12 VAC 35-171-10 et seq. Certification of Providers of Mental Health/Mental Retardation Case Management Services.** The proposed regulation defines the qualifications that mental health and mental retardation case managers must have for Medicaid reimbursement.

Statutory Authority: § 37.1-182.2 of the Code of Virginia.

Public comments may be submitted until 5 p.m. on Friday, May 14, 1999, to Cathy Rowe, Office of Mental Retardation Services, Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services, P.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 23218.

Contact: Marion Greenfield, Policy Analyst, Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Substance Abuse Services, P.O. Box 1797, Richmond, VA 23218-1797, telephone (804) 786-6431 or FAX (804) 371-0092.

VIRGINIA MILITARY INSTITUTE

† May 8, 1999 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Volume 15, Issue 15

Virginia Military Institute, Preston Library, Turman Room, Lexington, Virginia.

A meeting of the Board of Visitors to (i) hear committee reports; (ii) approve the budget, (iii) approve awards, distinctions and diplomas; (iv) discuss personnel changes; and (v) elect a president pro tem. Public comment will not be received.

Contact: Colonel Edwin L. Dooley, Jr., Secretary to the Board, Virginia Military Institute, Superintendent's Office, Lexington, VA 24450, telephone (540) 464-7206 or (540) 464-7660/TTY ☎

DEPARTMENT OF MINES, MINERALS AND ENERGY

April 14, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, Buchanan-Smith Building, U.S. Route 23 South, Big Stone Gap, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly meeting of the Abandoned Mine Land Advisory Committee.

Contact: Danny R. Brown, Division Director, Division of Mined Land Reclamation, Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy, U.S. Route 23 South, P.O. Drawer 900, Big Stone Gap, VA 24219, telephone (540) 523-8152, FAX (804) 523-8163 or toll-free 1-800-828-1120/TTY **☎**

VIRGINIA MUSEUM OF FINE ARTS

April 14, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Avenue, Auditorium, Richmond, Virginia.

A joint meeting of the Planning and Executive Committees to update the museum's strategic plan.

Contact: Emily C. Robertson, Secretary of the Museum, Virginia Museum of Fine Arts, 2800 Grove Ave., Richmond, VA 23221, telephone (804) 367-0553 or FAX (804) 367-2633.

VIRGINIA MUSEUM OF NATURAL HISTORY

April 24, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Sheraton Inn Fredericksburg, 2801 Plank Road, Fredericksburg, Virginia.

A meeting of the Board of Trustees to receive reports from the development, executive, finance, legislative, marketing, nominating, outreach, personnel, planning and facilities, and research and collections committees. Public comment will be received following approval of the minutes of the January meeting.

Contact: Rhonda J. Knighton, Executive Assistant, Virginia Museum of Natural History, 1001 Douglas Ave., Martinsville, VA 24112, telephone (540) 666-8600 or (540) 666-8638/TTY ☎

BOARD OF NURSING

† April 13, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

† April 19, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

† April 20, 1999 - 9 a.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A Special Conference Committee will conduct informal conferences with licensees and certificate holders. Public comments will not be received.

Contact: Nancy K. Durrett, R.N., Executive Director, Board of Nursing, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9909, FAX (804) 662-9512 or (804) 662-7197/TTY **2**

BOARD OF PHARMACY

April 13, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

A Special Conference Committee will hear informal conferences. Public comments will not be received.

Contact: Elizabeth Scott Russell, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9911, FAX (804) 662-9313 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

† April 21, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, 5th Floor, Conference Room 2, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting to discuss fee increases and possible amendments to regulations concerning pharmacy compounding. The board may consider disciplinary matters and conduct disciplinary proceedings. Public comments will be received at the beginning of the meeting immediately following the approval of the agenda and the review and acceptance of minutes.

Contact: Elizabeth Scott Russell, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-1717, telephone (804) 662-9911, FAX (804) 662-9313 or (804) 662-7197/TTY ☎

POLYGRAPH EXAMINERS ADVISORY BOARD

† June 15, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Public Hearing Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, 4th Floor, Conference Room 4-West, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A public hearing to receive comments on existing regulations, followed by the board's regular meeting. The board will discuss regulatory review and other matters requiring board action, including disciplinary

cases. The polygraph licensing examination will also be conducted.

Contact: Nancy Taylor Feldman, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8590, FAX (804) 367-2474 or (804) 367-9753/TTY

BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL REGULATION

† May 13, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A public hearing in connection with the board's study of the need to regulate nonprofit cemeteries. The study is a result of House Joint Resolution 745, which passed in the 1999 General Assembly Session. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Debra L. Vought, Agency Management Analyst, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8519 or (804) 367-9753.

† May 13, 1999 - 1:30 p.m. – Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A public hearing in connection with the board's study of the need to increase the regulation of landscape architects from certification to licensure. The study is a result of Senate Joint Resolution 431, which passed in the 1999 General Assembly Session. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the department at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that suitable arrangements can be made. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Debra L. Vought, Agency Management Analyst, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8519 or (804) 367-9753.

DEPARTMENT OF PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL REGULATION

May 4, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on proposed changes to the Public Participation Guidelines for the

Polygraph Examiners Advisory Board which will incorporate the Virginia boxing and wrestling events regulatory program into the guidelines. At 10:30, public comment will be heard regarding the regulatory program of Virginia boxing and wrestling events.

Contact: David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8595, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

* * * * * * * *

May 4, 1999 - 10:30 a.m. – Public Hearing

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

May 28, 1999 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation intends to adopt regulations entitled: **18 VAC 120-40-10 et seq. Virginia Professional Boxing and Wrestling Events Regulations.** The purpose of the proposed regulations is to regulate professional boxing and wrestling in Virginia. The proposed regulations replace the emergency regulations that became effective on August 11, 1998. Aside from a few editorial changes, the language of the proposed regulations is unchanged from the emergency regulations.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-201 and 54.1-831 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: David Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8507, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

VIRGINIA PUBLIC BROADCASTING BOARD

† April 15, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, House Room C, Richmond, Virginia.

A quarterly meeting.

Contact: Jamie Breeden, Administrative Staff Specialist, Secretary of Administration, 110 S. 7th St., 3rd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-5506, FAX (804) 371-5273 or (804) 371-8076/TTY ☎

VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION

April 21, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Tyler Building, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A monthly meeting of the commission including a report from Colonial Downs and a segment for public participation.

Contact: William H. Anderson, Policy Analyst, Virginia Racing Commission, 10700 Horsemen's Rd., New Kent, VA 23124, telephone (804) 966-7400 or FAX (804) 966-7418.

REAL ESTATE APPRAISER BOARD

April 20, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least two weeks prior to the meeting. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8552, FAX (804) 367-2475, or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

REAL ESTATE BOARD

April 15, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

April 16, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to conduct informal fact finding conferences pursuant to § 9-6.14:11 of the Administrative Process Act. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least two weeks prior to the meeting. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Debbie A. Amaker, Legal Assistant, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8582, FAX (804) 367-2179 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

† April 21, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A general business meeting of the Time-Share Advisory Committee. Persons desiring to participate in the meeting and requiring special accommodations or interpreter services should contact the board at least two weeks prior to the meeting. The department fully complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Contact: Karen W. O'Neal, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8552, FAX (804) 367-2475, or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

STATE REHABILITATION COUNCIL

† May 10, 1999- 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting Woodrow Wilson Rehabilitation Center, Fishersville, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular business meeting.

Contact: Kay Magill, State Rehabilitation Council Liaison, Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms Dr., Richmond, VA 23288, telephone (804) 662-7527, FAX (804) 662-7696, or toll-free 1-800-552-5019 or 1-800-464-9950/TTY ☎

BOARD OF REHABILITATIVE SERVICES

† June 10, 1999 -10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms Drive, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly business meeting.

Contact: Barbara G. Tyson, Administrative Staff Assistant, Department of Rehabilitative Services, 8004 Franklin Farms Dr., P.O. Box K-300, Richmond, VA 23288-0300, telephone (804) 662-7010, toll-free 1-800-552-5019 or (804) 662-7000/TTY ☎

VIRGINIA RESOURCES AUTHORITY

† April 20, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Hotel Roanoke and Conference Center, 110 Shenandoah Avenue, Roanoke, Virginia.

† May 11, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Virginia Resources Authority, Mutual Building, 909 East Main Street, Suite 700, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to approve minutes of the prior meeting, to review the authority's operations for the prior month, and to consider other matters and take other actions as the authority may deem appropriate. The planned agenda of the meeting will be available at the offices of the authority one week prior to the date of the meeting.

Contact: Robert W. Lauterberg, Executive Director, Virginia Resources Authority, P.O. Box 1300, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 644-3100 or FAX (804) 644-3109.

RICHMOND HOSPITAL AUTHORITY

April 23, 1999 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting May 28, 1999 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Richmond Nursing Home, 1900 Cool Lane, 2nd Floor Classroom, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners to discuss nursing home operations and related matters.

Contact: Marilyn H. West, Chairman, Richmond Hospital Authority, 700 E. Main St., Suite 904, P.O. Box 548, Richmond, VA 23218-0548, telephone (804) 782-1938 or FAX (804) 782-9771.

DEPARTMENT FOR RIGHTS OF VIRGINIANS WITH DISABILITIES

April 21, 1999 - 5 p.m. -- Public Hearing

Northside High School Auditorium, 6758 Northside High School Road, Roanoke, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided)

A public hearing to receive comments on departmental priorities for fiscal year 2000. Sign language interpretation and a room loop for hard-of-hearing individuals will be provided.

Contact: Susan Jones, Program Operations Coordinator, Department for Rights of Virginians With Disabilities, 202 N. 9th St., 9th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2042, FAX (804) 225-3221 or toll-free 1-800-552-3962.

† April 23, 1999 - 10 a.m. - Open Meeting

Hampton Inn and Suites, 900 West Main Street, Charlottesville, Virginia.

A meeting of the Developmental Disabilities Advisory Council. Public comment is welcome and will be received at approximately 10 a.m.

Contact: Susan Jones, Program Operations Coordinator, Department for Rights of Virginians With Disabilities, 202 N. 9th St., 9th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2042, FAX (804) 225-3221 or toll-free 1-800-552-3962.

SCIENCE MUSEUM OF VIRGINIA

† April 22, 1999 - 3 p.m. – Open Meeting

Science Museum of Virginia, 2500 West Broad Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A quarterly meeting of the Board of Trustees.

Contact: Karen Spencer, Administrative Assistant, Science Museum of Virginia, 2500 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 367-6799, FAX (804) 367-6541 or toll-free 1-800-659-1727.

VIRGINIA SMALL BUSINESS FINANCING AUTHORITY

† April 27, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Business Assistance, 707 East Main Street, 3rd Floor, Main Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting of the Loan Committee to review applications for loans submitted to the authority for approval. The time will be moved to 8:30 a.m. if the VSBFA Board of Directors decides to combine meeting dates with the VSBFA Loan Committee.

Contact: Cathleen M. Surface, Executive Director, Virginia Small Business Financing Authority, P.O. Box 446, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-8254 or FAX (804) 225-3384.

STATE BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES

† April 14, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting **† April 15, 1999 - 9 a.m.** – Open Meeting
Memslyn Inn, 401 West Main Street, Luray, Virginia.

A formal business meeting of the board.

Contact: Pat Rengnerth, Administrative Staff Specialist, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1826, FAX (804) 692-1949 or toll-free 1-800-552-7096/TTY ☎

* * * * * * * *

April 16, 1999 -- Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Social Services intends to repeal regulations entitled: **22 VAC 40-50-10 et seq.** Allowable Variance Policy. The Allowable Variance Policy is no longer essential because it is a duplicative regulation. The policy has been incorporated into a promulgated regulation entitled General Procedures and Information for Licensure.

Statutory Authority: §§ 63.1-174, 63.1-194.2, and 63.1-202 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Kathryn Thomas, Program Development Supervisor, Division of Licensing Programs, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1793 or FAX (804) 692-2370.

* * * * * * * *

April 16, 1999 -- Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Social Services intends to amend regulations entitled: **22 VAC 40-130-10 et seq. Minimum Standards for Licensed Child-Placing Agencies.** The proposed regulation establishes the minimum requirements for licensure to place children and conduct activities related to placement in foster care, in treatment foster care, in adoptive homes, or in independent living arrangements.

Statutory Authority: §§ 63.1-202 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Doris Jenkins, Manager, Child Welfare Licensing Unit, Department of Social Services, 730 E. Broad St.,

Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 692-1773, FAX (804) 692-2370, or e-mail dtj7@dss.state.va.us.

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

May 8, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing J. Sargeant Reynolds Community College, 1651 East Parham Road, Building A, Room 132, Richmond, Virginia.

† May 15, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Public Hearing

Jefferson Center Foundation, Junior League of Roanoke Valley, 541 Luck Avenue, Atrium, Roanoke, Virginia.

A public hearing held in accordance with federal regulations for the Child Care and Development Fund Plan (CCDF). Every two years the Department of Social Services, lead agency for CCDF, is required to prepare a plan for administration and implementation of the Child Care and Development Fund Program. This includes (i) the process used in developing the plan; (ii) a description of child care services offered, including payment rates and eligibility criteria: (iii) processes with parents to inform them of the availability of child care services and the application process; (iv) activities and services to improve the quality of child care; and (v) health and safety requirements for providers. Prior to May 1, 1999, each local department of social services will receive a copy of the plan. Written comments may be submitted from May 1 through May 30, 1999.

Contact: Wenda Singer, Human Services Resource Consultant, Child Day Care Unit, Department of Social Services, Child Day Care Unit, 730 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219-1849, telephone (804) 692-2201, FAX (804) 692-2209 or toll-free 1-800-552-7096/TTY ☎

BOARD OF SOCIAL WORK

† April 23, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, Conference Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

A formal administrative hearing will be held pursuant to § 9-6.14:12 of the Code of Virginia. Public comments will not be received.

Contact: Evelyn Brown, Executive Director, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9914 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

† May 6, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

† May 7, 1999 - 1 p.m. – Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

An informal administrative hearing will be held pursuant to \S 9-6.14:11 of the Code of Virginia. Public comments will not be received.

Contact: Evelyn Brown, Executive Director, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor,

Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9914 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

† May 7, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting Department of Health Professions, 6606 West Broad Street, Conference Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular board meeting. Public comment will be received at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Evelyn Brown, Executive Director, Department of Health Professions, 6606 W. Broad St., 4th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 662-9914 or FAX (804) 662-9943.

VIRGINIA TOURISM CORPORATION

† April 28, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

The Homestead, Hot Springs, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Marketing Development Committee to review applications submitted for cooperative marketing program funds for FY 2000. Public comment will be taken at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Judy H. Bulls, Assistant to the President and CEO, Virginia Tourism Corporation, 901 East Byrd St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-8174, FAX (804) 786-1919 or (804) 371-0327/TTY ☎

† April 29, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

† April 30, 1999 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting

The Homestead, Hot Springs, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Board of Directors to discuss strategic planning and budgets. Public comment will be taken at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Judy H. Bulls, Assistant to the President and CEO, Virginia Tourism Corporation, 901 East Byrd St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-8174, FAX (804) 786-1919 or (804) 371-0327/TTY ☎

COMMONWEALTH TRANSPORTATION BOARD

April 14, 1999 - 3 p.m. -- Open Meeting

480 King Carter Drive, Irvington, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A work session of the board and the Department of Transportation staff.

Contact: Shirley J. Ybarra, Secretary of Transportation, 1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6675.

April 15, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

480 King Carter Drive, Irvington, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A monthly meeting of the board to vote on proposals presented regarding bids, permits, additions and

deletions to the highway system, and any other matters requiring board approval. Public comment will be received at the outset of the meeting on items on the meeting agenda for which the opportunity for comment has not been afforded the public in another forum. Remarks will be limited to five minutes. Large groups are asked to select one individual to speak for the group. The board reserves the right to amend these conditions. Separate committee meetings may be held on call of the chairman. Contact Department of Transportation Public Affairs at (804) 786-2715 for schedule.

Contact: Shirley J. Ybarra, Secretary of Transportation, 1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6675.

TRANSPORTATION SAFETY BOARD

† May 4, 1999 - 11 a.m. -- Open Meeting Sheraton Waterside Hotel, Norfolk, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to discuss transportation safety issues.

Contact: Angelisa Jennings, Management Analyst, Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 W. Broad St., Room 405, Richmond, VA 23269, telephone (804) 367-2026.

TREASURY BOARD

April 21, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting James Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, 3rd Floor, Treasury Board Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular business meeting.

Contact: Gloria J. Hatchel, Administrative Assistant, Department of the Treasury, James Monroe Bldg., 101 N. 14th St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-6011.

BOARD FOR THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

April 13, 1999 - 1 p.m. -- Open Meeting Department for the Visually Handicapped, 397 Azalea Avenue, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regular quarterly meeting to receive information regarding department activities and operations, review expenditures from the board's institutional fund, and discuss other issues raised by board members.

Contact: Katherine C. Proffitt, Executive Secretary Senior, Department for the Visually Handicapped, 397 Azalea Ave., Richmond, VA 23227, telephone (804) 371-3140, toll-free 1-800-622-2155, FAX (804) 371-3351 or (804) 371-3140/TTY

DEPARTMENT FOR THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

Vocational Rehabilitation Services

April 17, 1999 - 2 p.m. -- Public Hearing

Hinton Avenue Methodist Church, 750 Hinton Avenue, Charlottesville, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

April 27, 1999 - 6:30 p.m. -- Public Hearing

Virginia Rehabilitation Center for the Blind and Visually Impaired, 401 Azalea Avenue, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

Meetings to invite comments from the public regarding vocational rehabilitation services for persons with visual disabilities. All comments will be considered in developing the state plan for this program.

Contact: James G. Taylor, Vocational Rehabilitation Program Director, Department for the Visually Handicapped, 397 Azalea Ave., Richmond, VA 23227, telephone (804) 371-3111, FAX (804) 371-3351 or toll-free 1-800-622-2155.

VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD

April 19, 1999 - 9 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Environmental Quality, Piedmont Regional Office, 4949-A Cox Road, Glen Allen, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee to discuss the development of the proposed Regulation for Transportation of Solid and Medical Wastes on State Waters, 9 VAC 20-170-10 et seq.

Contact: Lily Choi, Environmental Engineer Senior, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4054 or FAX (804) 698-4032.

April 29, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Public Hearing

Department of Environmental Quality, 629 East Main Street, Training Room, Richmond, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on the Virginia Waste Management Board's Notice of Intended Regulatory Action for Amendment 15 to the Virginia Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, 9 VAC 20-60-12 et seq. Amendment 15 will update the Commonwealth's regulations to coordinate with recent changes to federal regulations, replace existing text with incorporation of federal regulations, correct errors, and improve clarity.

Contact: Robert G. Wickline, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4213 or FAX (804) 698-4327.

BOARD FOR WASTE MANAGEMENT FACILITY OPERATORS

May 20, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 5 West, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to conduct routine board business. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230-4917, telephone (804) 367-8595, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

† April 20, 1999 - 9:30 a.m. – Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to consider a VWP permit is tentatively scheduled. Persons interested in attending should confirm the meeting date with Cindy Berndt.

Contact: Cindy M. Berndt, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240, telephone (804) 698-4378.

† April 27, 1999 - 7 p.m. – Public Hearing

Weyers Cave Community Center, 1.5 miles east of I-81, 683 Weyers Cave Road (SR 256), Weyers Cave, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on the proposed issuance of the Virginia Pollution Abatement Permit for Houff's Feed Fertilizer Company, Inc., land application of both municipal and industrial sludge to agricultural fields in both Augusta and Rockingham counties.

Contact: Kemper Loyd, Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Rd., Harrisonburg, VA 22801, telephone (540) 574-7800.

* * * * * * * *

May 5, 1999 - 3 p.m. - Public Hearing

Alleghany County Administration Building, 110 Rosedale Avenue, Covington, Virginia.

May 28, 1999 - Public comments may be submitted until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of the Code of Virginia that the State Water Control Board intends to amend regulations entitled: **9 VAC 25-260-5 et seq. Water Quality Standards.** The purpose of the proposed amendments is to correct the downstream limits of a stocked trout stream classification for the Jackson River in Covington, Virginia. If adopted as proposed, the amendment would change 1.7 miles of stream from a stocked trout designation to mountainous zone waters. Question and Answer Period: A question and answer period will be held one-half hour prior to the beginning of the public hearing at the same location. Department of Environmental Quality staff will be present to answer questions regarding the proposed action.

Accessibility to Persons with Disabilities: The meeting will be held at a public facility believed to be accessible to persons with disabilities. Any person with questions on the accessibility of the facilities should contact Elleanore Daub, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, or by telephone at (804) 698-4111 or 1-800-592-5482 or TTY (804) 698-4261. Persons needing interpreter services for the deaf must notify Ms. Daub no later than April 28, 1999.

The agency requests comments on any aspect of the proposal and also on the costs and benefits of the proposal.

Other Pertinent Information: The department has conducted analyses on the proposed action related to basis, purpose, substance, issues, need, estimated impacts, applicable federal requirements and alternative approaches and schedule for reevaluation. These analyses as well as copies of the amendments may be viewed at the Department of Environmental Quality, West Central Regional Office, 3019 Peters Creek Road, Roanoke, VA 24019, or obtained from Elleanore Daub, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, or by telephone at (804) 698-4111 or toll free at 1-800-592-5482 or TTY (804) 698-4261.

Statutory Authority: § 62.1-44.15 of the Code of Virginia.

Contact: Elleanore Daub, Environmental Program Planner, Department of Environmental Quality, P.O. Box 10009, Richmond, VA 23240-0009, telephone (804) 698-4111, FAX (804) 698-4522 or toll-free1-800-592-5482.

† May 6, 1999 - 7 p.m. – Public Hearing

Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Road, Harrisonburg, Virginia.

A public hearing to receive comments on the proposed reissuance of a VPDES permit for Vesper View Sewage Treatment Plant located in Crimora.

Contact: Jay Roberts, Department of Environmental Quality, Valley Regional Office, 4411 Early Rd., Harrisonburg, VA 22801, telephone (540) 574-7800.

BOARD FOR WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER WORKS OPERATORS

April 15, 1999 - 8:30 a.m. -- Open Meeting

Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 West Broad Street, Conference Room 5W, Richmond, Virginia.

A routine business meeting. A public comment period will be held at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: David E. Dick, Assistant Director, Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation, 3600 W. Broad St., Richmond, VA, telephone (804) 367-8505, FAX (804) 367-2475 or (804) 367-9753/TTY ☎

COLLEGE OF WILLIAM AND MARY

April 29, 1999 - Noon -- Open Meeting April 30, 1999 - 8 a.m. -- Open Meeting Blow Memorial Hall, Richmond Road, Williamsburg, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Visitors to approve the budgets and fees of the College of William and Mary and Richard Bland College, to receive reports from several committees of the board, and to act on those resolutions that are presented by the administrations of the College of William and Mary and Richard Bland College. An informational release will be available four days prior to the board meeting for those individuals and organizations who request it.

Contact: William T. Walker, Jr., Director, Office of University Relations, College of William and Mary, 312 Jamestown Rd., P.O. Box 8795, Williamsburg, VA 23187-8795, telephone (757) 221-2624.

LEGISLATIVE

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

† June 21, 1999 - 10 a.m. -- Open Meeting General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon request)

A meeting to (i) receive 1999 legislative update, (ii) receive a working draft of the title revision (Titles 2.1 and 9), (iii) receive a report from the Administrative Law Advisory Committee, (iv) consider possible replacement volumes to the Virginia Administrative Code, and (v) conduct any other business that may come before the commission. A 15-minute public comment period is scheduled at the beginning of the meeting.

Contact: Jane Chaffin, Registrar of Regulations, General Assembly Bldg., 9th and Broad Streets, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-3591, FAX (804) 692-0625 or e-mail jchaffin@leg.state.va.us.

JOINT LEGISLATIVE AUDIT AND REVIEW COMMISSION

April 12, 1999 - 10 a.m. – Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 9th and Broad Streets, Senate Room B, Richmond, Virginia.

A staff briefing on the 1999 workplan.

Contact: Philip A. Leone, Director, Joint Legislative Audit and Review Commission, General Assembly Bldg., Suite 1100, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-1258.

CHRONOLOGICAL LIST

OPEN MEETINGS

April 12

Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of - Virginia Horse Industry Board Barbers, Board for

Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Board

- † Economic Development Partnership, Virginia - Search Committee
- † Intergovernmental Regulations, Virginia Advisory Commission on
 - Visual Quality Committee

Legislative Audit and Review Commission, Joint

April 13

Auctioneers Board Corrections, Board of - Correctional Services Committee † Nursing, Board of - Special Conference Committee

Pharmacy, Board of

Visually Handicapped, Board for the

April 14

Corrections, Board of

- Administration Committee
- Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Board of
- Independent Living Council, Statewide

Juvenile Justice, State Board of

- Mines, Minerals and Energy, Department of - Abandoned Mine Land Advisory Committee
- Museum of Fine Arts, Virginia
- Planning and Executive Committees
- † Social Services, State Board of
- Transportation Board, Commonwealth

April 15

Agriculture and Consumer Services, Department of - Pesticide Control Board Compensation Board Medicine, Board of - Informal Conference Committee † Public Broadcasting Board, Virginia Real Estate Board † Social Services, State Board of Transportation Board, Commonwealth

Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators, Board for

April 16

Building Code Technical Review Board, State Compensation Board † Dentistry, Board of

- Special Conference Committee
- Real Estate Board

April 19

Cosmetology, Board for

- † Health Professions, Board of
 - Enforcement Committee
 - Executive Committee
 - Ad Hoc Committee on Establishing Independent Boards
- † Nursing, Board of
- Special Conference Committee
- Waste Management Board, Virginia
- Technical Advisory Committee

April 20

- † Aviation Board, Virginia
- † Health Professions, Board of
 - Education Committee
 - Practitioner Self-Referral Committee
 - Regulatory Research Committee
- † Housing Development Authority, Virginia
 - Board of Commissioners
- Job Training Coordinating Council, Governor's
- † Nursing, Board of
- Special Conference Committee
- Real Estate Appraiser Board
- † Resources Authority, Virginia
- Board of Directors
- † Water Control Board, State

April 21

- † Aviation Board, Virginia
- † Conservation and Recreation, Department of
 - Chippokes Plantation Farm Foundation
- Rappahannock Scenic River Advisory Board Intergovernmental Relations, Virginia Advisory
- ntergovernmental Rel
- Commission on
- † Pharmacy, Board of Racing Commission, Virginia
- t Real Estate Board
- Time-Share Advisory Committee
- Treasury Board

April 22

- **Compensation Board**
- † Longwood College
- Executive Committee
- † Science Museum of Virginia

April 23

- † Longwood College
 - Academic Affairs Committee
 - Facilities/Services Committee
 - Finance Committee
 - Student Affairs Committee
- Richmond Hospital Authority
- Board of Commissioners
- † Rights of Virginians with Disabilities, Department for
 Development Disabilities
- † Social Work, Board of

April 24

- † Longwood College
- Board of Visitors

Museum of Natural History, Virginia - Board of Trustees

April 26

Accountancy, Board for Conservation and Recreation, Board of

April 27

- † Economic Development Partnership, VirginiaBoard of Directors
- Marine Resources Commission
- † Small Business Financing Authority, Virginia - Loan Committee

April 28

- † Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers, and Landscape Architects, Board for
- Architect Section
- Medicine, Board of
- Informal Conference Committee
- † Tourism Corporation, Virginia
 - Marketing Development Committee

April 29

- † Aging, Commonwealth Council on
- † Dentistry, Board of
- † Hammond Commission
- Health, State Board of
- † Tourism Corporation, Virginia
- Board of Directors
- William and Mary, College of
- Board of Visitors

April 30

- Comprehensive Services for At-Risk Youth and Their Families - State Executive Council
- + Dentistry, Board of
- Legislative/Regulatory Committee
- Health, State Board of
- Medicine, Board of
- Informal Conference Committee
- + Tourism Corporation, Virginia
- Board of Directors
- William and Mary, College of
- Board of Visitors

May 3

† Branch Pilots, Board for

May 4

- † Branch Pilots, Board for
- † Hopewell Industrial Safety Council
- † Transportation Safety Board

May 5

- † Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers, and Landscape Architects, Board for
 - Professional Engineer Section
- † Medicine, Board of
 - Advisory Committee on Acupuncturists
 Advisory Committee on Radiologic Technologists

May 6

- Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of
- † Medicine, Board of
 - Informal Conference Committee
 - Advisory Board on Occupational Therapy
- Advisory Board on Respiratory Care + Social Work, Board of

May 7

Emergency Medical Services Advisory Board, State Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of

† Medicine, Board of

- Advisory Committee on Physician Assistants
- Advisory Board on Physical Therapy † Social Work, Board of

May 8

Military Institute, Virginia
 Board of Visitors

May 10

† Rehabilitation Council, State

May 11

Air Pollution Control Board, State Hearing Aid Specialists, Board for Medical Assistance Services, Board of

- † Resources Authority, Virginia
- Board of Directors

May 12

- Agriculture and Consumer Services, Board of
- † Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers, and Landscape Architects, Board for
- Land Surveyor Section
- † Community Colleges, State Board for
- Facilities Committee
- Personnel Committee
- † Juvenile Justice, State Board of

May 13

Asbestos and Lead, Virginia Board for † Community Colleges, State Board for

May 14

† Information Management, Council on

May 17

Labor and Industry, Department of
 Safety and Health Codes Board

May 18

 † Environmental Quality, Department of
 Virginia Ground Water Protection Steering Committee

May 19

- † Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers, and Landscape Architects, Board for
 - Landscape Architect Section

May 20

† Manufactured Housing Board, Virginia

Volume 15, Issue 15

Waste Management Facility Operators, Board for

May 21

- Comprehensive Services for At-Risk Youth and Their Families
 - State Executive Council

May 25

Marine Resources Commission

May 26

- + Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors, Certified Interior Designers, and Landscape Architects, Board for
 - Certified Interior Designers Section
- Certified Interior Designers Section
- † Pollution Prevention Advisory Committee, Virginia

May 28

Richmond Hospital Authority - Board of Commissioners

June 1

† Hopewell Industrial Safety Council

June 10

† Rehabilitative Services, Board of

June 15

† Polygraph Examiners Advisory Board

June 21

† Code Commission, Virginia

June 22

Marine Resources Commission

June 25

Comprehensive Services for At-Risk Youth and Their Families

- State Executive Council

June 28

† Conservation and Recreation, Department of - Chippokes Plantation Farm Foundation

PUBLIC HEARINGS

April 12

Environmental Quality, Department of

April 13 Envi

Environmental Quality, Department of

April 16

† Environmental Quality, Department of

April 17

Visually Handicapped, Department for the - Vocational Rehabilitation Services

April 21

Rights of Virginians with Disabilities, Department for

April 27

Visually Handicapped, Department for the - Vocational Rehabilitation Services

† Water Control Board, State

April 29

Waste Management Board, Virginia

May 4

Professional and Occupational Regulation, Department of

May 6

† Water Control Board, State

May 8

Social Services, Department of

May 13

† Professional and Occupational Regulation, Board for

May 15

† Social Services, Department of